
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                     (NOVEMBER 18, 2025) (Week 47 of 2025) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

                                                                                                   
      
Daniel A. Bittinger II          Kent T. Carper             David L. Dietrich        Mark E. Nelson          Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         570-7681                         870-9224                       540-1259                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov          ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov    mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov      matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 

You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held November 18, 
2025, at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa, for the purpose 
of taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly 
come before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. 
Members of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board 
of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation 
on concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place 
after properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when 
approved by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a 
subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 

2:00 p.m.    Joint closed session with LEC Authority {Iowa Code Section 21.5 (1) (c)} 

                    Dennis Butler Meeting Room 

   

4:30 p.m.    Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence   

        
                    1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action                       
 
                                                                     Consent Agenda 

        Items 2 through 6 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one 

motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member.   

                  

                   2.  Approval of the minutes of November 4, 2025, meeting 

                        Approval of the minutes of November 6, 2025, special meeting 

                        Approval of the minutes of November 12, 2025, special meeting 

 

                   3.  Approval of claims 

 

                   4.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                        Approval of resolution for a tax suspension for L.M.  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.
mailto:kcarper@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:ddietrich@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

                  5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                       a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                       b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 

                       c.  Approval of request to deauthorize county positions 

                       d.  Approve a one-time extension of open enrollment to December 5th  

 

                  6.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

                       Approval to schedule December 9th @ 4:40 p.m., December 16th, @ 4:40 p.m. and       Action 

                       December 23rd @ 4:40 p.m. for three public hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance 

                       Map Amendment (rezone) 36.50 acres located on Parcel #874624200011, Section 24 

                       T87N R46W (Grange Township) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural  

                       Estates (AE) Zoning District 

 

End of Consent Agenda  

 

                    7.  Deputy Commissioner of Elections – Steve Hofmeyer 

                         2nd Tier Canvass for the 2025 City/School Election                                                          Action   

                   8.  Emergency Services – Drew Baier 

                        a.  Approval of the position change from part-time EMT to part-time advance                 Action 

                             EMT 

                        b.  Approval of the position change from part-time EMT to part-time paramedic              Action 

 

                   9.  Building Services – Kenny Schmitz 

                        a.  Approval of LEC demolition form of contract, plans, and specifications to be             Action 

                             utilized in the competitive bid process 

                        b.  Approval of the public hearing date of December 2, 2025, at 4:40 p.m.                      Action 

                        c.  Approval of “Public Notice of Hearing”                                                                         Action 

 

                10.   County Auditor – Michelle Skaff 

                        Approve a recount request for the Sgt Bluff Luton Public Measure                                  Action 

                11.  Board Administration – Ryan Ericson 

                       Approval to increase county contribution to Self-Insurance Health Plan                           Action 

                       

                12.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger 

                       a.  Approve $1,000 from Gaming Revenue to support the ISAC Amicus Brief                 Action    

                       b. Approval of the new Woodbury County health insurance plan design effective           Action       

                           1/01/2026                

   

                13.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                               Information                                                          
 

                14.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                        Information 
 
                15.  Board Concerns                                                                                                         Information  
       

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
WED., NOV 19    12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., NOV 20     10:00 a.m.      Siouxland Regional Transit System Board of Directors Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr.     

                               4:30 p.m.     Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., NOV 21         9:00 a.m.     Hungry Canyons Alliance Quarterly Meeting, 17501 Eastern Hills Dr. Council Bluffs   

                            12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, S. C. Public Museum                                                                                                 

MON., NOV 24      5:00 p.m.     Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

THU., NOV 27     11:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr. 

                                            Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund  

                                            Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon, Dr.  

 

MON., DEC 1        5:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

WED., DEC 3        7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive/Finance Committee, 6401 Gordon Drive   

                             4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.   

FRI., DEC 5       12:00 p.m.     SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee, 6401 Gordon Dr.                                                           

WED., DEC 10    7:30 a.m.      SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Dr. 

                            8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                          12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                         

THU., DEC 11     4:00 p.m.      Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

                            5:30 p.m.      SIMPCO Board of Directors Holiday Party, Sioux City Country Club 

 WED., DEC 17 12:00 p.m.      Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., DEC 18     4:30 p.m.      Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., DEC 19    12:00 p.m.       Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 607 – 4th Street.                                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable 

accommodations for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the 

Employer. 

 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national 
origin, pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil 
Rights Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to 
access the Iowa Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



 

 

NOVEMBER 4, 2025, FORTY-FIFTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, November 4, 2025, at 4:30 p.m. Board members present were Carper, Ung, 
Dietrich, Nelson, and Bittinger II. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Ryan Ericson, 
Budget and Finance Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, and Shona Campbell, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the 
Board.   
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the agenda for November 4, 2025. Carried 5-0. Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the October 28, 2025 meeting. Copy filed. 
   
3. To approve the claims totaling $939,358.91. Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving petition for suspension of taxes for 

Delphene Tompkins, parcel #884705326026, 2545 S Palmetto St. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,968 

RESOLUTION APPROVING PETITION FOR SUSPENSION OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, Delphene Tompkins, as titleholder of a property located 2545 S. Palmetto Street, Sioux City, Iowa, 
Woodbury County, Iowa, and legally described as follows:    
      
Parcel #884705326026 
 
BLEMONT LOTS 386 & 387 
          
WHEREAS, Delphene  Tompkins of the aforementioned property has petitioned the Board of Supervisors for a 
suspension of taxes pursuant to the 2017 Iowa Code section 427.9, and   
                                                              
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors recognizes from documents provided that the petitioner is unable to provide to 
the public revenue; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby grants the request for 
a suspension of taxes and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to so record the approval of this tax 
suspension for this property. 
 
SO RESOLVED this 4th day of November 2025.   

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve up to $5,200 from Gaming Funds for the cost of the holiday luncheon.  Copy filed. 
 
6. To receive for signatures a Resolution naming depositories for County Treasurer. 
 

RESOLUTION NAMING DEPOSITORIES 
RESOLUTION #13,969 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors in Woodbury County, Iowa:  That we do hereby 
designate the following named banks to be depositories of the Woodbury County funds in amounts not to exceed 
the amount named opposite each of said designated depositories and Tina Bertrand, Woodbury County Treasurer 
is hereby authorized to deposit the Woodbury County funds in amounts not to exceed in the aggregate the amounts 
named for said banks as follows, to wit: 



November 4, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

   MAXIMUM DEPOSIT MAXIMUM DEPOSIT 
     In the effect 
            Prior       under the 
NAME OF DEPOSITORY LOCATION       resolution        resolution 
 
U.S. Bank                                              Sioux City, Iowa $50,000,000 $50,000,000 
 
Security National Bank                      Sioux City, Iowa 100,000,000 100,000,000 
 
First Interstate Bank Sioux City, Iowa  100,000,000  100,000,000 
 
Wells Fargo Bank Sioux City, Iowa  50,000,000  50,000,000 
 
PeoplesBank Sioux City, Iowa   5,000,000    5,000,000 
 
Northwest Bank Sioux City, Iowa  50,000,000  50,000,000 
 
Primebank Sioux City, Iowa  50,000,000  50,000,000 
 
Great Southern Bank          Sioux City, Iowa   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 
Pioneer Bank Sergeant Bluff, Iowa  10,000,000 10,000,000 
 
Sloan State Bank Sloan, Iowa   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 
Valley Bank & Trust Danbury, Iowa   1,500,000   1,500,000 
 
BankFirst Hornick, Iowa   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 
First National Bank Correctionville, Iowa   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 
United Bank of Iowa Moville, Iowa 10,000,000   10,000,000 
 
United Bank of Iowa Anthon, Iowa   5,000,000   5,000,000 
 
Liberty National Bank Sioux City, Iowa  25,000,000  25,000,000 
 
Availa Bank Sioux City, Iowa 10,000,000  10,000,000 
 
Central Bank Sioux City, Iowa  10,000,000    10,000,000 
 
MidStates Bank   Sergeant Bluff, Iowa         5,000,000         5,000,000 
 
SCSB    Danbury, Iowa           5,000,000      $5,000,000 
 
SO RESOLVED this 4th day of November, 2025                         

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
7a. To approve the separation of Erick Ortiz, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 10-30-2025.  Resigned.; the 

appointment of David Klocke, Courthouse Safety & Security – PT On-Call , County Sheriff Dept., effective 11-10-
2025, $22.97/hour. Job Vacancy Posted on 10/8/25.  Entry Level Salary $22.97/hr.; the separation Debbie 
Sewalson, Legal Secretary, County Attorney Dept., effective 12-31-2025.  Retired.; the appointment of Carson 
Gaarder, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 11-17-2025., $26.04/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted on 
9/17/2025.  Per CWA:  Entry Level Salary $26.04/hr.; and the appointment of Dakota Ross, Civilian Jailer, County 



November 4, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 3 
 

 

Sheriff Dept., effective 11-17-2025, $26.04/hour.  Job Vacancy Posted on 9/17/2025.  Per CWA:  Entry Level Salary 
$26.04/hr.  Copy filed. 

 
7b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA Civilian:  $26.04/hour.; and Legal Secretary, County Attorney Dept.  AFSCME 
Courthouse:  $26.07/hour.  Copy filed. 

 
7c. To approve the deauthorization of Support Mental Health Advocate (-1.0 FTE), Mental Health Dept. Copy filed. 
 
7d. Presentation of Award Certificate to Karla Polley.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0.  
 
8a. Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich receive for signatures a Resolution Vacation of Excess Right of Way.  Carried 

5-0. 
 

RESOLUTION #13,970 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

VACATION OF EXCESS RIGHT OF WAY 
 

WHEREAS the Code of Iowa, section 306.10 gives the Board of Supervisors the power on its own motion to alter or 
vacate and close any highway or road under its jurisdiction, and 
 
WHEREAS the Code of Iowa, section 306.11 allows the Board to vacate a road right of way held by easement that 
will not change the traveled portion of the road or deny access to adjoining landowners, and 
 
WHEREAS a road vacation under the circumstances outlined in section 306.11 does not require a hearing, and 
 
WHEREAS there is excess right of way on 170th Lane and 
 
WHEREAS vacation of the excess right of way does not affect access or highway use, and 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Supervisors no longer believes the County needs to maintain its easement on the following 
County right of way, 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, enters the following order in 
regard to the aforementioned right of way vacation. 
 
The Board of Supervisors order the following described right of way be vacated. 
 
All road right of way as recorded in Book 697 Page 258 in Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 47 West of the Fifth 
Principal Meridian, Woodbury County, Iowa, lying outside of 170th Lane as shown on sheet 3 of the survey plat 
recorded in Document Number 2025-06883 and included as Exhibit ‘A’. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors that all interest in the subject 
section of road right-of-way be vacated, subject to utility easements of record for ingress and egress.   
 
SO ORDERED this 4th day of November, 2025. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
8b. Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to receive for signatures a Resolution to recognize 170th Lane as part of the 

Secondary Road system.  Carried 5-0. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE 170TH LANE AS PART OF THE 



November 4, 2025 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 4 
 

 

SECONDARY ROAD SYSTEM 
RESOLUTION #13,971 

 
WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors under Chapter 306.4 has jurisdiction over the Woodbury 
County secondary road system, and 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 306.10 gives said Board the power to establish, alter, or vacate roads on the secondary road 
system, and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer has determined that a loop road in Section 3, Township 88 North, Range 47 West 
has been maintained as a county road, but was left unnamed when county rural addressing was established, 
 
WHEREAS, the road remains in county jurisdiction and is maintained in compliance with county road standards, 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors that a street which is hereby 
established as 170th Lane, beginning and ending at its intersections with 170th Street in Section 3, Township 88 
North, Range 47 West as shown on sheet 3 of the survey plat recorded in Document Number 2025-06883, has 
been accepted into the Woodbury County Secondary Road system as a county road and that the road is open to 
the public. 
 
SO RESOLVED, dated this 4th day of November, 2025. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
8c. Motion by Nelson second by Dietrich to approve the contract for the L-B(K23)—73-967 bridge replacement project 

with Dixon Construction Co. for $974,948.95.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
9a. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to remove Supervisor Mark Nelson as the county representative on the LEA 

board and appoint Supervisor David Dietrich as the new county representative on the LEA board.  Carried 5-0.  
Copy filed. 

 
9b. Discussion on the 2026 Employee Healthcare Plan.  Copy filed. 

 
Motion by Nelson second by Bittinger to receive documents from Seth Major, Gallagher.  Carried 5-0. Copy filed.  
 
Sheriff’s office employee Tony Wingert, CWA Sec Roads Union President Corey Davis, District 5 Secondary Roads 
employee Kyle Sanderson, Woodbury County citizen Doyle Turner, Conservation Director Dan Heissel, County 
Engineer Laura Sievers, District Health Director Kevin Grieme, and County Treasurer Tina Bertrand expressed 
concerns about the Employee Healthcare Plan proposals. 
 
Bittinger left the meeting at 5:30pm. 

 
10. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
11. Doyle Turner, Moville address the board concerning AMICAS brief. 
  
12. Board concerns were heard. 
 

The Board adjourned the regular meeting until November 18, 2025.  
 

Meeting sign in sheet. Copy filed.  



NOVEMBER 6, 2025, SPECIAL MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

The Board of Supervisors met on Thursday, November 6, 2025, at 2:30 p.m.  Board members present were Dietrich, 
Bittinger II, Nelson, Ung and Carper.  Staff members present Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Ryan Ericson, 
Budget and Finance Director, and Michelle Skaff, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to go into joint closed session with LEC Authority (Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c)).  
Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to go out of joint closed session with LEC Authority (Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c)).  
Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote.  
 
Meeting adjourned. 



NOVEMBER 12, 2025, SPECIAL MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

The Board of Supervisors met on Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, 
Nelson (by phone), Ung (by phone) and Carper, Dietrich was absent.  Staff members present Ryan Ericson, Budget and 

Finance Director, Steve Hofmeyer, Deputy Commissioner of Elections, and Michelle Skaff, Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
The meeting was called to order. 
 
 Motion by Bittinger second by Carper to approve the agenda for November 12, 2025. Carried 4-0. Copy filed. 
 
2. The canvass for the (1st Tier) City/School Regular Election held on November 4, 2025, was held.  
 

Motion by Bittinger second by Nelson to receive for signatures the canvass of the (1st Tier) City/School Regular 
Election. Carried 4-0. Copy filed. 

 
1. Motion by Bittinger second by Carper to approve the claims totaling $53,966.50.  Carrie 4-0.  Copy filed. 
 
The Board adjourned the meeting. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet. Copy filed. 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
BOARD ADMINISTRATION 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:              Board of Supervisors 
 
FROM:  Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant 
 
RE:  Consideration of a Petition for a Tax Suspension 
 
DATE:  November 12, 2025 
 
 
 
Please consider this request for a tax suspension for L.M.   If the Board approves this request, the 
suspension resolution requires the chairman’s signature. 
 
 
Thank you. 
 
kmj 









WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/14/2025 11/18/2025

Melissa Thomas, HR Director

✔

✔

✔

Approve a one time extension of open enrollment to December 5th. 

An extension is being requested to aid in the administration of benefits.  

Historically open enrollment has been November 1st through the 30th. An extra week will be beneficial to all 
staff and other members of our health plan. 

0

Approve the motion

Motion to approve a one time extension of open enrollment to December 5th. 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/12/25 11/18/25

Daniel Priestley

✔

Motion to schedule dates and times for 3 Public Hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map
Amendment (rezone) of 36.50-acres located on Parcel #874624200011, Section 24, T87N R46W
(Grange Township) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.

This request is for the Board to set the dates and times for 3 Public Hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance
Map Amendment (rezone) of 36.50-acres located on Parcel #874624200011, Section 24, T87N R46W
(Grange Township) from Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.

Doug Skinner of Skinner Holdings LLC has submitted an application for a minor subdivision and an application for a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone from the Agricultural
Preservation (AP) Zoning District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. The proposed subdivision, named 252nd Overlook is for a 36.50-acre portion of the property located in the
Southeast quarter of the Northwest quarter (SE1/4-NW1/4), Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter (NE1/4-SW1/4), and Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter (NW1/4-SE1/4) of
Section 24, Township 87 North, Range 46 West of the 5th P.M., Woodbury County, Iowa. The property is known as GIS Parcel # 874624200011. The property is situated at 2374 252nd St.,
Hornick, IA 51026, approximately seven miles east of Salix and seven miles north of Hornick, east of Old Highway 141, west of Franklin Avenue, and on the south side of 252nd Street.
Additionally, Doug Skinner (Skinner Holdings LLC) has applied for a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment to rezone the aforementioned property from the Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Zoning District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District. This rezoning is proposed to accommodate the future development of the lots, which is required under Section 3.01.1 B of the
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance.

o

Set the dates and times for 3 Public Hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (rezone) 36.50-
acres located on Parcel #874624200011, Section 24, T87N R46W (Grange Township) from Agricultural
Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.
Tuesday, December 9, 2025, 4:40 PM
Tuesday, December 16, 2025, 4:40 PM
Tuesday, December 23, 2025, 4:40 PM

Motion to schedule dates and times for 3 Public Hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment
(rezone) of 36.50-acres located on Parcel #874624200011, Section 24, T87N R46W (Grange Township) from
Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.
Tuesday, December 9, 2025, 4:40 PM
Tuesday, December 16, 2025, 4:40 PM
Tuesday, December 23, 2025, 4:40 PM



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________                                                       

 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

Approve Ordinance    ☐                            Approve Resolution   ☐                       Approve Motion   ☐ 

Give Direction    ☐                                    Other:  Informational  ☐                       Attachments   ☐ 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

 

 

 

 

 

 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

11/10/2025 11/12/2025

Drew Baier, EMS Director

✔

Approval of EMT position change to AEMT

Emergency Services would like the approval to change one part time EMT position to a part time Advanced 
EMT position. 

Woodbury County Emergency Services have many goals to help provide quality EMS to the citizens of the 
county. One of them is to enhance the level of skill and care staff members can provide. EMT’s are 
encouraged to increase their skill level. The employee has obtained the next level of Advanced EMT. 

The financial impact would be $15,908.74. This is a portion of the allocated CIP money. Since the required 
specialized equipment is only provided from the sole source provider, no bidding or competitive pricing was 
performed. The equipment must be installed by a company certified and trained technician.

Approval of expenditure The financial impact would be an increase in hourly wages, from $24.62 per hour to 
$25.45 per hour. The employee would remain as a .25 FTE employee.

Authorization for approval of the position change from Part time EMT to Part time Advanced EMT.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________                                                       

 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    
 

 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

Approve Ordinance    ☐                            Approve Resolution   ☐                       Approve Motion   ☐ 

Give Direction    ☐                                    Other:  Informational  ☐                       Attachments   ☐ 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

 

 

 

 

 

 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

11/10/2025 11/12/2025

Drew Baier, EMS Director

✔

Approval of EMT position to Paramedic

Emergency Services would like the approval to change one part time EMT position to a part time Paramedic 
position.

Woodbury County Emergency Services have many goals to help provide quality EMS to the citizens of the 
county. One of them is to enhance the level of skill and care staff members can provide. EMT’s are 
encouraged to increase their skill level. The employee has obtained the next level of Advanced EMT. 

Woodbury County Emergency Services have many goals to help provide quality EMS to the citizens of the county. One of them is to 
enhance the level of skill and care staff members can provide. EMT’s are encouraged to increase their skill level. The employee 
expanded beyond the Advanced EMT, obtaining their paramedic

The financial impact would be an increase in hourly wages, from $24.62 per hour to $27.65 per hour. The 
employee would be changed from a .25 to .05 FTE employee to match the other part time paramedics. 

Authorization for approval of the position change from Part time EMT to Part time Paramedic.



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/13/2025 11/18/2025

Kenny Schmitz

✔

✔

✔

LEC Demolition- Form of Contract, Plans, & Specifications 

Pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 26 Building Services hereby requests approval of form of contract, plans, & 
specifications to be utilized in the competitive bid process

9/02/2025- Board Approves CMBA Architectural Contract 
1/21/2025- Board Approves Olsson Engineering Survey, Utilities, & Planning Agreement

To be Determined by Competitive Bids

Building Services recommends approving form of contract, plans, and specifications as drafted

Motion to Approve LEC Demolition Form of Contract, Plans, & Specifications to be utilized in the competitive 
bid process



 

 

 

 

 

PROJECT MANUAL 
 

LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER DEMO 

WOODBURY COUNTY 
  

SIOUX CITY, IA  
 

 

CMBA Project #: 24230 

Issuance: Construction Documents 

Date: October 31, 2025 

 

CMBA Contact:  Tanner Koeppe  
    (P) 712.535.1253  
    (E) koeppe.t@cmbaarchitects.com 
 
Owner:   Woodbury County 
 Kenny Schmitz, Director – Building Services 
    (P) 712.279.6539  

(E) Kschmitz@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
 

Civil Engineer:   Olsson 
 Seth Lange, PE 
    (P) 402.430.0823 

(E) slange@olsson.com 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS  000110 - 1 
 

SECTION 000110 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS 

DIVISION 00 -- PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS   

00 01 07 Seals Page CMBA 

00 01 10 Table of Contents  CMBA 

00 01 10  Notice of Hearing and Letting CMBA 

00 21 12 A701 - Instructions to Bidders CMBA 

00 21 13 Instructions to Bidders CMBA 

00 41 00 Bid Form CMBA 

00 41.00.a Bidder Status Form CMBA 

00 43 36 Proposed Sub Contractors Form CMBA 

00 50 00 Contracting Forms and Supplements CMBA 

00 50 01 A101 – Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the CMBA 

 basis of payment is a Stipulated Sum 

00 72 00 A201 - General Conditions of the Contract for Construction CMBA 

00 73 00 Supplementary Conditions of the Contract for Construction CMBA 

 

SPECIFICATIONS 

DIVISION 01 -- GENERAL REQUIREMENTS   

01 10 00 Summary CMBA 

01 20 00 Price and Payment Procedures CMBA 

01 30 00 Administrative Requirements CMBA 

01 40 00 Quality Requirements  CMBA 

01 50 00 Temporary Facilities and Controls CMBA 

01 60 00 Product Requirements CMBA 

01 60 10  Substitution Procedures  CMBA 

 

DIVISION 02 -- EXISTING CONDITIONS   

02 41 00  Demolition  CMBA 

 

DIVISION 03 -- CONCRETE (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 04 -- MASONRY (NOT USED)   

 

DIVISION 05 – METALS (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 06 -- WOOD, PLASTICS, AND COMPOSITES  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 07 -- THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION  (NOT USED) 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

 TABLE OF CONTENTS  000110 - 2 
 

DIVISION 08 -- OPENINGS  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 09 -- FINISHES  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 10 -- SPECIALTIES  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 11 -- EQUIPMENT (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 12 – FURNISHINGS (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 13 -- SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 14 -- CONVEYING EQUIPMENT (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 21 -- FIRE SUPPRESSION  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 22 -- PLUMBING  REQUIREMENTS  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 23 -- HEATING, VENTILATING, AND AIR-CONDITIONING (HVAC) REQUIREMENTS (NOT 
USED) 

 

DIVISION 25 -- INTEGRATED AUTOMATION  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 26 -- ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 27 – COMMUNICATION REQUIREMENTS  (NOT USED) 

   

DIVISION 28 -- ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS  (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 31 – EARTHWORK (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 32 -- EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS (NOT USED) 

 

DIVISION 33 -- UTILITIES (NOT USED) 

 

END OF SECTION 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 
 

 00 11 13 - 1 
 

 

SECTION 00 11 13 

NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 

 

  

 A hearing will be conducted on the proposed plans and specifications, the proposed form of contract and 
estimated cost for the Law Enforcement Demo for the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, (the 
“Owner”) of Sioux City, Iowa at a meeting of the Board, to be held in the Woodbury County Courthouse 
Board of Supervisors Room, 620 Douglas St., Sioux City, Iowa 51101 at 4:40 P.M., on the 2nd of 
December 2025, at which time and place any person may appear and file any opinion and express their 
view to the proposed plans, specifications and form of contract and estimated costs for the Project, both 
orally and in writing. 

 Sealed bids will be accepted for the Law Enforcement Demo, in Sioux City, Iowa on behalf of the Owner 
at the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., Sioux City, Iowa 51101, in the Board of 
Supervisors Office at 3:00 P.M., on the 9th of December 2025. Bids received after this time will not be 
accepted.  All bids shall be made on official bid forms furnished by the Architect and must be enclosed in 
a separate sealed envelopes and plainly identified and addressed to the Board.  If a bid is to be mailed, 
the bid envelope shall be sealed in a regular mailing envelope.  FAX and E-mail Bids will not be accepted.  
The bidder shall bear sole responsibility for ensuring any bid is received at the correct bid location and by 
the correct time.  The Owner shall have no responsibility regarding the location or timeliness of the receipt 
of any bid(s).  Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud following the closing of the above bid 
submission deadline. 

 Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, certified check, cashier's check or certified share draft in a 
separate sealed envelope, clearly marked “Bid Bond” or Bid Security”, in an amount equal to five percent 
(5%) of the total amount of the bid.  The certified or cashier's check shall be drawn on a bank in Iowa or a 
bank chartered under the laws of the United States of America or the certified share draft shall be drawn 
on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States and payable to the Owner.  
Said check or share draft may be cashed, or the bid bond forfeited as liquidated damages in the event the 
successful bidder fails or refuses to enter into a contract within ten (10) days of issuance of a Notice of 
Award and post bond satisfactory to the Owner, insuring the faithful fulfillment of the contract and 
maintenance of said improvements as required by law.  The bid bond should be executed by a 
corporation authorized to contract as a surety in the State of Iowa and must not contain any conditions 
either in the body or as an endorsement thereon. Bids received will be acted upon at such later time and 
place as may then be established.  The successful bidder will be notified after the Board of Supervisors 
awards the contract. 

 Contract documents may be examined at the office of the Architect, Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, 
PC, d/b/a CMBA Architects, 302 Jones St., Suite 200, Sioux City, Iowa 51101, or obtained from the 
Architect for a $100 refundable deposit.  Contract documents may also be examined at the following 
Building Exchanges: 

1. Sioux City Construction League, 3900 Stadium Drive, Sioux City, IA 51106. 

2. Plains Builder's Exchange, 220 N. Kiwanis Ave., Sioux Falls, SD 57104. 

3. Sioux Falls Builder's Exchange, 1418 C Ave., Sioux Falls, SD 57104. 

4. North Iowa Builder's Exchange, 15 W. State Street, Mason City, IA 50401. 

5. Greater Fort Dodge Growth Alliance, 24 N. 9th Street, Fort Dodge, IA 50501. 

6. Omaha Builder's Exchange, 4159 S. 94th Street, Omaha, NE 68127. 

7. Master Builders of Iowa, 221 Park Street, Des Moines, Iowa 50309. 

 The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, re-advertise for new bids and to waive 
informalities that may be in the best interest of the Owner. 



NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 
 

 00 11 13 - 2 
 

 

 The successful bidder will be notified on or after December 10th, 2025, after the proposals have been 
reviewed by the Architect and a recommendation as to the lowest responsible bidder has been made to 
Owner and accepted by the Owner. 

 Plans and specifications governing the construction of said proposed improvements have been prepared 
by Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, PC, d/b/a CMBA Architects 302 Jones St., Suite 200, Sioux City, 
Iowa 51101, which plans and specifications referring to and defining said proposed improvements are 
hereby made a part of this notice and the proposed contract shall be executed to comply therein. 

 PRE-BID CONFERENCE will be held at the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., Sioux 
City, Iowa 51101, in the Board of Supervisors Conference Room at 2:00 P.M., on the 2nd of 
December 2025.  Remote attendance is possible through Microsoft Teams, an invitation email may 
be requested from Tanner Koeppe koeppe.t@cmbaarchitects.com.  An electronic copy of the 
original building plans are also available and can be requested in the same manner.  All interested 
contractors, sub-contractors and material suppliers are encouraged to attend.  The Owner, Architect and 
Consulting Engineers will be present to describe the Project and answer questions.  Attendance is not 
mandatory, but is recommended. 

 

 

 



D
R

AF
T

Document A701® – 2018
Instructions to Bidders

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

1

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document may
have revised the text of the original
AIA standard form. An Additions
and Deletions Report that notes
revisions to the standard form text
is available from the author and
should be reviewed. A vertical line
in the left margin of this document
indicates where the author has
added to or deleted from the
original AIA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with
an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion or
modification.

FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL
LAWS MAY IMPOSE
REQUIREMENTS ON PUBLIC
PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS.
CONSULT LOCAL AUTHORITIES
OR AN ATTORNEY TO VERIFY
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO THIS PROCUREMENT
BEFORE COMPLETING THIS
FORM.

It is intended that AIA Document
G612™–2017, Owner’s
Instructions to the Architect, Parts
A and B will be completed prior to
using this document.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA® Document to
another electronic file is prohibited
and constitutes a violation of
copyright laws as set forth in the
footer of this document.

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

24230 Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center Demo
Sioux City, IA  

THE OWNER:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Woodbury County, Iowa 
620 Douglas St. 
Sioux City, IA 51101 

THE ARCHITECT:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, P.C. 
dba CMBA Architects 
302 Jones St.  
Suite 200
Sioux City, IA 51101 

TABLE OF ARTICLES

1      DEFINITIONS

2      BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3      BIDDING DOCUMENTS

4      BIDDING PROCEDURES

5      CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

6      POST-BID INFORMATION

7      PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND

8      ENUMERATION OF THE PROPOSED CONTRACT DOCUMENTS



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

2

ARTICLE 1   DEFINITIONS
§ 1.1 Bidding Documents include the Bidding Requirements and the Proposed Contract Documents. The Bidding
Requirements consist of the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, supplementary instructions to
bidders, the bid form, and any other bidding forms. The Proposed Contract Documents consist of the unexecuted form of
Agreement between the Owner and Contractor and that Agreement’s Exhibits, Conditions of the Contract (General,
Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, all Addenda, and all other documents enumerated in
Article 8 of these Instructions.

§ 1.2 Definitions set forth in the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, or in other Proposed Contract
Documents apply to the Bidding Documents.

§ 1.3 Addenda are written or graphic instruments issued by the Architect, which, by additions, deletions, clarifications, or
corrections, modify or interpret the Bidding Documents.

§ 1.4 A Bid is a complete and properly executed proposal to do the Work for the sums stipulated therein, submitted in
accordance with the Bidding Documents.

§ 1.5 The Base Bid is the sum stated in the Bid for which the Bidder offers to perform the Work described in the Bidding
Documents, to which Work may be added or deleted by sums stated in Alternate Bids.

§ 1.6 An Alternate Bid (or Alternate) is an amount stated in the Bid to be added to or deducted from, or that does not
change, the Base Bid if the corresponding change in the Work, as described in the Bidding Documents, is accepted.

§ 1.7 A Unit Price is an amount stated in the Bid as a price per unit of measurement for materials, equipment, or services,
or a portion of the Work, as described in the Bidding Documents.

§ 1.8 A Bidder is a person or entity who submits a Bid and who meets the requirements set forth in the Bidding
Documents.

§ 1.9 A Sub-bidder is a person or entity who submits a bid to a Bidder for materials, equipment, or labor for a portion of
the Work.

ARTICLE 2   BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS
§ 2.1 By submitting a Bid, the Bidder represents that:

.1      the Bidder has read and understands the Bidding Documents;

.2      the Bidder understands how the Bidding Documents relate to other portions of the Project, if any, being bid
concurrently or presently under construction;

.3      the Bid complies with the Bidding Documents;

.4      the Bidder has visited the site, become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be
performed, and has correlated the Bidder’s observations with the requirements of the Proposed Contract
Documents;

.5      the Bid is based upon the materials, equipment, and systems required by the Bidding Documents without
exception; and

.6      the Bidder has read and understands the provisions for liquidated damages, if any, set forth in the form of
Agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

ARTICLE 3   BIDDING DOCUMENTS
§ 3.1 Distribution
§ 3.1.1 Bidders shall obtain complete Bidding Documents, as indicated below, from the issuing office designated in the
advertisement or invitation to bid, for the deposit sum, if any, stated therein.
(Indicate how, such as by email, website, host site/platform, paper copy, or other method Bidders shall obtain Bidding
Documents.)

 

§ 3.1.2 Any required deposit shall be refunded to Bidders who submit a bona fide Bid and return the paper Bidding
Documents in good condition within ten days after receipt of Bids. The cost to replace missing or damaged paper
documents will be deducted from the deposit. A Bidder receiving a Contract award may retain the paper Bidding
Documents, and the Bidder’s deposit will be refunded.



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

3

§ 3.1.3 Bidding Documents will not be issued directly to Sub-bidders unless specifically offered in the advertisement or
invitation to bid, or in supplementary instructions to bidders.

§ 3.1.4 Bidders shall use complete Bidding Documents in preparing Bids. Neither the Owner nor Architect assumes
responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete Bidding Documents.

§ 3.1.5 The Bidding Documents will be available for the sole purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work. No license or grant
of use is conferred by distribution of the Bidding Documents.

§ 3.2 Modification or Interpretation of Bidding Documents
§ 3.2.1 The Bidder shall carefully study the Bidding Documents, shall examine the site and local conditions, and shall
notify the Architect of errors, inconsistencies, or ambiguities discovered and request clarification or interpretation
pursuant to Section 3.2.2.

§ 3.2.2 Requests for clarification or interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall be submitted by the Bidder in writing
and shall be received by the Architect at least seven days prior to the date for receipt of Bids.
(Indicate how, such as by email, website, host site/platform, paper copy, or other method Bidders shall submit requests
for clarification and interpretation.)

§ 3.2.3 Modifications and interpretations of the Bidding Documents shall be made by Addendum. Modifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents made in any other manner shall not be binding, and Bidders shall not rely upon
them.

§ 3.3 Substitutions
§ 3.3.1 The materials, products, and equipment described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required
function, dimension, appearance, and quality to be met by any proposed substitution.

§ 3.3.2 Substitution Process
§ 3.3.2.1 Written requests for substitutions shall be received by the Architect at least ten days prior to the date for receipt
of Bids. Requests shall be submitted in the same manner as that established for submitting clarifications and
interpretations in Section 3.2.2.

§ 3.3.2.2 Bidders shall submit substitution requests on a Substitution Request Form if one is provided in the Bidding
Documents.

§ 3.3.2.3 If a Substitution Request Form is not provided, requests shall include (1) the name of the material or equipment
specified in the Bidding Documents; (2) the reason for the requested substitution; (3) a complete description of the
proposed substitution including the name of the material or equipment proposed as the substitute, performance and test
data, and relevant drawings; and (4) any other information necessary for an evaluation. The request shall include a
statement setting forth changes in other materials, equipment, or other portions of the Work, including changes in the
work of other contracts or the impact on any Project Certifications (such as LEED), that will result from incorporation of
the proposed substitution.

§ 3.3.3 The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitution is upon the proposer. The Architect’s decision of
approval or disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be final.

§ 3.3.4 If the Architect approves a proposed substitution prior to receipt of Bids, such approval shall be set forth in an
Addendum. Approvals made in any other manner shall not be binding, and Bidders shall not rely upon them.

§ 3.3.5 No substitutions will be considered after the Contract award unless specifically provided for in the Contract
Documents.

§ 3.4 Addenda
§ 3.4.1 Addenda will be transmitted to Bidders known by the issuing office to have received complete Bidding
Documents.
(Indicate how, such as by email, website, host site/platform, paper copy, or other method Addenda will be transmitted.)



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

4

§ 3.4.2 Addenda will be available where Bidding Documents are on file.

§ 3.4.3 Addenda will be issued no later than four days prior to the date for receipt of Bids, except an Addendum
withdrawing the request for Bids or one which includes postponement of the date for receipt of Bids.

§ 3.4.4 Prior to submitting a Bid, each Bidder shall ascertain that the Bidder has received all Addenda issued, and the
Bidder shall acknowledge their receipt in the Bid.

ARTICLE 4   BIDDING PROCEDURES
§ 4.1 Preparation of Bids
§ 4.1.1 Bids shall be submitted on the forms included with or identified in the Bidding Documents.

§ 4.1.2 All blanks on the bid form shall be legibly executed. Paper bid forms shall be executed in a non-erasable medium.

§ 4.1.3 Sums shall be expressed in both words and numbers, unless noted otherwise on the bid form. In case of discrepancy, the
amount entered in words shall govern.

§ 4.1.4 Edits to entries made on paper bid forms must be initialed by the signer of the Bid.

§ 4.1.5 All requested Alternates shall be bid. If no change in the Base Bid is required, enter “No Change” or as required by
the bid form.

§ 4.1.6 Where two or more Bids for designated portions of the Work have been requested, the Bidder may, without
forfeiture of the bid security, state the Bidder’s refusal to accept award of less than the combination of Bids stipulated by
the Bidder. The Bidder shall neither make additional stipulations on the bid form nor qualify the Bid in any other manner.

§ 4.1.7 Each copy of the Bid shall state the legal name and legal status of the Bidder. As part of the documentation
submitted with the Bid, the Bidder shall provide evidence of its legal authority to perform the Work in the jurisdiction
where the Project is located. Each copy of the Bid shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the
Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation shall further name the state of incorporation and have the corporate seal
affixed. A Bid submitted by an agent shall have a current power of attorney attached, certifying the agent’s authority to
bind the Bidder.

§ 4.1.8 A Bidder shall incur all costs associated with the preparation of its Bid.

§ 4.2 Bid Security
§ 4.2.1 Each Bid shall be accompanied by the following bid security:
(Insert the form and amount of bid security.)

§ 4.2.2 The Bidder pledges to enter into a Contract with the Owner on the terms stated in the Bid and shall, if required,
furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract and payment of all obligations arising thereunder. Should
the Bidder refuse to enter into such Contract or fail to furnish such bonds if required, the amount of the bid security shall
be forfeited to the Owner as liquidated damages, not as a penalty. In the event the Owner fails to comply with Section 6.2,
the amount of the bid security shall not be forfeited to the Owner.

§ 4.2.3 If a surety bond is required as bid security, it shall be written on AIA Document A310™, Bid Bond, unless
otherwise provided in the Bidding Documents. The attorney-in-fact who executes the bond on behalf of the surety shall
affix to the bond a certified and current copy of an acceptable power of attorney. The Bidder shall provide surety bonds
from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 4.2.4 The Owner will have the right to retain the bid security of Bidders to whom an award is being considered until (a)
the Contract has been executed and bonds, if required, have been furnished; (b) the specified time has elapsed so that Bids
may be withdrawn; or (c) all Bids have been rejected. However, if no Contract has been awarded or a Bidder has not been
notified of the acceptance of its Bid, a Bidder may, beginningdays after the opening of Bids, withdraw its Bid and request
the return of its bid security.

§ 4.3 Submission of Bids



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

5

§ 4.3.1 A Bidder shall submit its Bid as indicated below:
(Indicate how, such as by website, host site/platform, paper copy, or other method Bidders shall submit their Bid.)

§ 4.3.2 Paper copies of the Bid, the bid security, and any other documents required to be submitted with the Bid shall be
enclosed in a sealed opaque envelope. The envelope shall be addressed to the party receiving the Bids and shall be
identified with the Project name, the Bidder’s name and address, and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Work for
which the Bid is submitted. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope
with the notation “SEALED BID ENCLOSED” on the face thereof.

§ 4.3.3 Bids shall be submitted by the date and time and at the place indicated in the invitation to bid. Bids submitted after
the date and time for receipt of Bids, or at an incorrect place, will not be accepted.

§ 4.3.4 The Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated for receipt of Bids.

§ 4.3.5 A Bid submitted by any method other than as provided in this Section 4.3 will not be accepted.

§ 4.4 Modification or Withdrawal of Bid
§ 4.4.1 Prior to the date and time designated for receipt of Bids, a Bidder may submit a new Bid to replace a Bid
previously submitted, or withdraw its Bid entirely, by notice to the party designated to receive the Bids. Such notice shall
be received and duly recorded by the receiving party on or before the date and time set for receipt of Bids. The receiving
party shall verify that replaced or withdrawn Bids are removed from the other submitted Bids and not considered. Notice
of submission of a replacement Bid or withdrawal of a Bid shall be worded so as not to reveal the amount of the original
Bid.

§ 4.4.2 Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the date and time designated for the receipt of Bids in the same format
as that established in Section 4.3, provided they fully conform with these Instructions to Bidders. Bid security shall be in
an amount sufficient for the Bid as resubmitted.

§ 4.4.3 After the date and time designated for receipt of Bids, a Bidder who discovers that it made a clerical error in its Bid
shall notify the Architect of such error within two days, or pursuant to a timeframe specified by the law of the jurisdiction
where the Project is located, requesting withdrawal of its Bid. Upon providing evidence of such error to the reasonable
satisfaction of the Architect, the Bid shall be withdrawn and not resubmitted. If a Bid is withdrawn pursuant to this
Section 4.4.3, the bid security will be attended to as follows:
(State the terms and conditions, such as Bid rank, for returning or retaining the bid security.)

ARTICLE 5   CONSIDERATION OF BIDS
§ 5.1 Opening of Bids
If stipulated in an advertisement or invitation to bid, or when otherwise required by law, Bids properly identified and
received within the specified time limits will be publicly opened and read aloud. A summary of the Bids may be made
available to Bidders.

§ 5.2 Rejection of Bids
Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the Owner shall have the right to reject any or all Bids.

§ 5.3 Acceptance of Bid (Award)
§ 5.3.1 It is the intent of the Owner to award a Contract to the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder, provided the Bid
has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents. Unless otherwise prohibited by law,
the Owner shall have the right to waive informalities and irregularities in a Bid received and to accept the Bid which, in
the Owner’s judgment, is in the Owner’s best interests.

§ 5.3.2 Unless otherwise prohibited by law, the Owner shall have the right to accept Alternates in any order or
combination, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Bidding Documents, and to determine the lowest responsive
and responsible Bidder on the basis of the sum of the Base Bid and Alternates accepted.

ARTICLE 6   POST-BID INFORMATION
§ 6.1 Contractor’s Qualification Statement
Bidders to whom award of a Contract is under consideration shall submit to the Architect, upon request and within the



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

6

timeframe specified by the Architect, a properly executed AIA Document A305™, Contractor’s Qualification Statement,
unless such a Statement has been previously required and submitted for this Bid.

§ 6.2 Owner’s Financial Capability
A Bidder to whom award of a Contract is under consideration may request in writing, fourteen days prior to the expiration
of the time for withdrawal of Bids, that the Owner furnish to the Bidder reasonable evidence that financial arrangements
have been made to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract. The Owner shall then furnish such reasonable
evidence to the Bidder no later than seven days prior to the expiration of the time for withdrawal of Bids. Unless such
reasonable evidence is furnished within the allotted time, the Bidder will not be required to execute the Agreement
between the Owner and Contractor.

§ 6.3 Submittals
§ 6.3.1 After notification of selection for the award of the Contract, the Bidder shall, as soon as practicable or as stipulated
in the Bidding Documents, submit in writing to the Owner through the Architect:

.1      a designation of the Work to be performed with the Bidder's own forces;

.2      names of the principal products and systems proposed for the Work and the manufacturers and suppliers of
each; and

.3      names of persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a
special design) proposed for the principal portions of the Work.

§ 6.3.2 The Bidder will be required to establish to the satisfaction of the Architect and Owner the reliability and
responsibility of the persons or entities proposed to furnish and perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents.

§ 6.3.3 Prior to the execution of the Contract, the Architect will notify the Bidder if either the Owner or Architect, after
due investigation, has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Bidder. If the Owner or Architect has
reasonable objection to a proposed person or entity, the Bidder may, at the Bidder’s option, withdraw the Bid or submit an
acceptable substitute person or entity. The Bidder may also submit any required adjustment in the Base Bid or Alternate
Bid to account for the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution. The Owner may accept the adjusted bid price or
disqualify the Bidder. In the event of either withdrawal or disqualification, bid security will not be forfeited.

§ 6.3.4 Persons and entities proposed by the Bidder and to whom the Owner and Architect have made no reasonable
objection must be used on the Work for which they were proposed and shall not be changed except with the written
consent of the Owner and Architect.

ARTICLE 7   PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND
§ 7.1 Bond Requirements
§ 7.1.1 If stipulated in the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the
Contract and payment of all obligations arising thereunder.

§ 7.1.2 If the furnishing of such bonds is stipulated in the Bidding Documents, the cost shall be included in the Bid. If the
furnishing of such bonds is required after receipt of bids and before execution of the Contract, the cost of such bonds shall
be added to the Bid in determining the Contract Sum.

§ 7.1.3 The Bidder shall provide surety bonds from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in
the jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 7.1.4 Unless otherwise indicated below, the Penal Sum of the Payment and Performance Bonds shall be the amount of
the Contract Sum.
(If Payment or Performance Bonds are to be in an amount other than 100% of the Contract Sum, indicate the dollar
amount or percentage of the Contract Sum.)

§ 7.2 Time of Delivery and Form of Bonds
§ 7.2.1 The Bidder shall deliver the required bonds to the Owner not later than three days following the date of execution
of the Contract. If the Work is to commence sooner in response to a letter of intent, the Bidder shall, prior to
commencement of the Work, submit evidence satisfactory to the Owner that such bonds will be furnished and delivered in
accordance with this Section 7.2.1.

§ 7.2.2 Unless otherwise provided, the bonds shall be written on AIA Document A312, Performance Bond and Payment



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

7

Bond.

§ 7.2.3 The bonds shall be dated on or after the date of the Contract.

§ 7.2.4 The Bidder shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the surety to affix to the
bond a certified and current copy of the power of attorney.

ARTICLE 8   ENUMERATION OF THE PROPOSED CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
§ 8.1 Copies of the proposed Contract Documents have been made available to the Bidder and consist of the following
documents:

.1      AIA Document A101™–2017, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor, unless
otherwise stated below.
(Insert the complete AIA Document number, including year, and Document title.)

.2      AIA Document A101™–2017, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds, unless otherwise stated below.
(Insert the complete AIA Document number, including year, and Document title.)

.3      AIA Document A201™–2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, unless otherwise
stated below.
(Insert the complete AIA Document number, including year, and Document title.)

.4      Building Information Modeling Exhibit, if completed:

.5      Drawings

Number Title Date

.6      Specifications

Section Title Date Pages

.7      Addenda:

Number Date Pages

.8      Other Exhibits:
(Check all boxes that apply and include appropriate information identifying the exhibit where required.)

[     ]      AIA Document E204™–2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, dated as indicated below:
(Insert the date of the E204-2017.)

     

[     ]      The Sustainability Plan:

Title Date Pages

[     ]      Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:



D
R

AF
T

AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute
of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 15:20:12
CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

8

Document Title Date Pages

.9      Other documents listed below:
(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Proposed Contract Documents.)



D
R

AF
T

Additions and Deletions Report for
AIA® Document A701® – 2018

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from
the original AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated
simultaneously by AIA software at 15:20:12 CST on 11/03/2025.

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A701 – 2018. Copyright © 1970, 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2018. All rights reserved. “The American Institute
of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,” “AIA,” the AIA Logo, and “AIA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This
draft was produced at 15:20:12 CST on 11/03/2025 under Subscription No.20250091042 which expires on 01/16/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time
use only, and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail
docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (69091c142267955a4f6761c7)

1

 
Changes to original AIA text  
 
There are no edits to the original text  
 
Variable Information  
 
PAGE 1
 
24230 Woodbury County Law Enforcement Center Demo
 
Sioux City, IA  
 
Woodbury County, Iowa 
 
620 Douglas St. 
 
Sioux City, IA 51101 
 
Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, P.C. 
 
dba CMBA Architects 
 
302 Jones St.  
 
Suite 200
Sioux City, IA 51101 
 
PAGE 2
 
 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  00 21 13 - 1 
 

SECTION 00 21 13 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

SUMMARY 

1.01 SEE AIA A701 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS FOLLOWING THIS DOCUMENT. 

1.02 THE INSTRUCTIONS IN THIS DOCUMENT AMEND OR SUPPLEMENT THE INSTRUCTIONS 
TO BIDDERS AND OTHER PROVISIONS OF THE BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

1.03 DOCUMENT INCLUDES 

A. Invitation to Bid, and other relevant information and requirements. 

1. Bid Submission 

2. Intent 

3. Contract Time 

B. Bid Documents and Contract Documents 

1. Definitions 

2. Contract Documents Identification 

3. Availability 

4. Examination 

5. Inquiries/Addenda 

C. Bid Submission 

1. Submission Procedure 

D. Bid Enclosures/Requirements 

1. Bidder Status Form (in the same envelope) 

2. Bid Form Requirements 

E. Offer Acceptance/Rejection 

1. Duration of Offer 

2. Acceptance of Offer 

1.04 RELATED DOCUMENTS 

A. Document 01 10 00 - Summary. 

B. Document 00 41 00 - Bid Form. 

C. Bidder Status Form 

1.05 SUPPLEMENTARY INSTRUCTIONS 

A. ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS 

1. Add Section 2.1.7:  The Bidder has investigated all required fees, permits, and regulatory 
requirements of authorities having jurisdiction and has properly included in the submitted 
Bid the costs of such fees, permits and requirements not otherwise indicated as provided 
by the Owner. 

2. Add Section 2.1.8:  The Bidder is a properly licensed Contractor according to the laws and 
regulations of the State of Iowa and meets qualifications indicated in the Procurement and 
Contracting Documents. 

B. ARTICLE 4 - BIDDING PROCEDURES 

1. Add Section 4.1.1.1:  Printable electronic Bid forms and related documents are available 
from the Architect. 

2. Add Section 4.1.9:  Owner may elect to disqualify a bid due to failure to submit a bid in the 
form requested, failure to bid requested alternates or unit prices, failure to complete 
entries in all blanks in the Bid Form, or inclusion by the Bidder of any Alternates, 
conditions, limitations or provisions not called for. 

3. Add Section 4.5:  Provide detailed cost breakdown no later than two (2) days following 
Architect's request. 

C. ARTICLE 5 - CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  00 21 13 - 2 
 

1. Add Section 5.2.1:  The Owner reserves the right to reject a bid based on Owner's and 
Architect's evaluation of qualification information submitted following the opening of Bids. 

 The evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications will include: 

a. Status of licensure and record of compliance with licensing requirements. 

b. Record of quality of completed work. 

c. Record of project completion and ability to complete Project. 

d. Record of financial management including financial resources available to complete 
Project. 

e. Record of timely payment of obligations. 

f. Record of project site management including compliance with requirements of 
authorities having jurisdiction. 

g. Record of and number of current claims and disputes and the status of their 
resolution. 

h. Qualifications of the Bidder's proposed Project Staff and proposed sub-contractors. 

1.06 PREBID CONFERENCE 

A. A Pre-Bid Conference is scheduled for December 2, 2025 at 2:00 p.m. at the Woodbury 
County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., Sioux City, Iowa 51101, in the Board of Supervisors 
Conference Room; with a walk-through of the existing building immediately following. 

B. All interested contractors, sub-contractors, and material suppliers are encouraged to attend. 
Attendance is not mandatory, but it is recommended. 

C. The Owner, Architect, and Consulting Engineers will be present to describe the Project and the 
schedule and answer questions. 

D. Summarized minutes of this meeting will be circulated to all known bidders.  These minutes will 
not form part of the Contract Documents. 

E. Information relevant to the Bid Documents will be recorded in an Addendum, issued to Bid 
Document recipients. 

F. Remote attendance is possible through Microsoft Teams, an invitation email may be 
requested from Tanner Koeppe at koeppe.t@cmbaarchitects.com.  An electronic copy of 
the original building plans are also available and can be requested in the same manner.   

 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

BID FORM  00 41 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 00 41 00 

BID FORM 

THE PROJECT AND THE PARTIES 

1.01 TO: 

A. Woodbury County (Owner) 
 ___620 Douglas St.___ 
 ___Sioux City, Iowa 51101___ 

1.02 RECEIVED BY: 

A. __Kenny Schmitz, Director of Building Services 

  Woodbury County 

 ___620 Douglas St.___ 

 ___Sioux City, Iowa 51101___ 

 Phone:_712.279.6539____ 

1.03 FOR: 

A. Project:  Law Enforcement Demo Woodbury County 
 ___407 7th St.___ 
 ___Sioux City, Iowa 51101___ 

B. CMBA Project Number:   24230 

1.04 DATE: ______________ (BIDDER TO ENTER DATE) 

1.05 SUBMITTED BY:  (BIDDER TO ENTER NAME AND ADDRESS) 

A. Bidder's Full Name _________________________ 
1. Address _____________________________ 
2. City, State, Zip:________________________ 
3. Phone: ______________________________ 

1.06 OFFER 

A. Having examined the Place of The Work and all matters referred to in the Instructions to 
Bidders and the Contract Documents prepared by CMBA for the above mentioned project, we, 
the undersigned, hereby offer to enter into a Contract to perform the Work for the Sum of: 

B. _________________________________________________________  dollars 
($______________________), in lawful money of the United States of America. 

C. Unit Price: Cost for removal and replacement of unsuitable fill as determined by geotechnical 
engineer  _________________Dollars ($__________) per cu/yd. 

C. We have included the required security deposit in a Separate Envelope as required by the 
Instruction to Bidders. 

D. All applicable federal taxes are included and State of Iowa taxes are included in the Bid Sum. 

1.07 ACCEPTANCE 

A. This offer shall be open to acceptance and is irrevocable for thirty (30) days from the bid closing 
date. 

B. If this bid is accepted by Owner within the time period stated above, we will: 
1. Execute the Agreement within seven (7) days of receipt of Notice of Award. 
2. Furnish the required bonds within seven (7) days of receipt of Notice of Award. 

1.08 CONTRACT TIME 

A. If this Bid is accepted, we will: 

B. Commence work as agreed upon with the Owner after written Notice to Proceed of this bid. 

C. Substantially complete the Work by the Thirty-First (31st) day of March 2026. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

BID FORM  00 41 00 - 2 
 

1.11 CHANGES TO THE WORK 

A. When Architect establishes that the method of valuation for Changes in the Work will be net 
cost plus a percentage fee in accordance with General Conditions, our percentage fee will be: 
1. ______ percent overhead and profit on the net cost of our own Work; 
2. ______ percent on the cost of work done by any Subcontractor. 

B. On work deleted from the Contract, our credit to Owner shall be Architect-approved net cost 
plus _________ of the overhead and profit percentage noted above. 

1.12 ADDENDA 

A. The following Addenda have been received.  The modifications to the Bid Documents noted 
below have been considered and all costs are included in the Bid Sum. 
1. Addendum # __  Dated _______ 
2. Addendum # __  Dated _______ 
3. Addendum # __  Dated _______ 

1.13 BID FORM SUPPLEMENTS 

A. The following Supplements are attached to this Bid Form and are considered an integral part of 
this Bid Form: 
1. Bidder Status Form 

1.14 BID FORM SIGNATURE(S) 

A. The Corporate Seal of 

B. ____________________________________________ 

 (Bidder - print the full name of your firm) 

C. was hereunto affixed in the presence of: 

D. ____________________________________________ 

 (Authorized signing officer, Title) 

E. (Seal)  

F. ____________________________________________ 

G. (Authorized signing officer, Title) 

END OF SECTION 

 



Bidder Status Form

You must submit the completed form to the governmental body requesting bids per 875 Iowa Administrative Code 
Chapter 156. This form has been approved by the Iowa Labor Commissioner.

309-6001 (09-15)

My company is not a subsidiary of another business entity or my company is a subsidiary of another 
business entity that would qualify as a resident bidder in Iowa.

Part A To be completed by all bidders
Please answer “Yes” or “No” for each of the following:

If you answered “Yes” for each question above, your company qualifies as a resident bidder.  Please 
complete Parts B and D of this form.
If you answered “No” to one or more questions above, your company is a nonresident bidder.  Please 
complete Parts C and D of this form.

My company has been conducting business in Iowa for at least 3 years prior to the first request for 
bids on this project.

My company is authorized to transact business in Iowa. 
(To help you determine if your company is authorized, please review the worksheet on the next page).

NoYes

My company has an office to transact business in Iowa.NoYes
My company’s office in Iowa is suitable for more than receiving mail, telephone calls, and e-mail.NoYes

NoYes

NoYes

Part B To be completed by resident bidders

My company has maintained offices in Iowa during the past 3 years at the following addresses: 

Dates: to/ / / / Address:

City, State, Zip:

You may attach additional sheet(s) if needed.

Part C To be completed by non-resident bidders

1.  Name of home state or foreign country reported to the Iowa Secretary of State:

2.  Does your company’s home state or foreign country offer preferences to resident bidders, resident labor 
force preferences or any other type of preference to bidders or laborers? NoYes

3.  If you answered “Yes” to question 2, identify each preference offered by your company’s home state or foreign country 
and the appropriate legal citation.

Dates: to/ / / / Address:

City, State, Zip:

Dates: to/ / / / Address:

City, State, Zip:

You may attach additional sheet(s) if needed.

Part D To be completed by all bidders

I certify that the statements made on this document are true and complete to the best of my knowledge and I know that my 
failure to provide accurate and truthful information may be a reason to reject my bid.

Firm Name:

Signature: Date:



This worksheet may be used to help complete Part A of the Resident Bidder Status form. If at least one of the following 
describes your business, you are authorized to transact business in Iowa.

Worksheet: Authorization to Transact Business

My business is currently registered as a contractor with the Iowa Division of Labor.NoYes

My business is a sole proprietorship and I am an Iowa resident for Iowa income tax purposes.NoYes

My business is a general partnership or joint venture. More than 50 percent of the general 
partners or joint venture parties are residents of Iowa for Iowa income tax purposes.

NoYes

My business is an active corporation with the Iowa Secretary of State and has paid all fees 
required by the Secretary of State, has filed its most recent biennial report, and has not filed 
articles of dissolution.

NoYes

My business is a corporation whose articles of incorporation are filed in a state other than Iowa, 
the corporation has received a certificate of authority from the Iowa secretary of state, has filed 
its most recent biennial report with the secretary of state, and has neither received a certificate of 
withdrawal from the secretary of state nor had its authority revoked.

NoYes

My business is a limited liability partnership which has filed a statement of qualification in this 
state and the statement has not been canceled.

NoYes

My business is a limited liability partnership which has filed a statement of qualification in a 
state other than Iowa, has filed a statement of foreign qualification in Iowa and a statement of 
cancellation has not been filed.

NoYes

My business is a limited partnership or limited liability limited partnership which has filed a 
certificate of limited partnership in this state, and has not filed a statement of termination.

NoYes

My business is a limited partnership or a limited liability limited partnership whose certificate of 
limited partnership is filed in a state other than Iowa, the limited partnership or limited liability 
limited partnership has received notification from the Iowa secretary of state that the application 
for certificate of authority has been approved and no notice of cancellation has been filed by the 
limited partnership or the limited liability limited partnership.

NoYes

My business is a limited liability company whose certificate of organization is filed in Iowa and has 
not filed a statement of termination.

NoYes

My business is a limited liability company whose certificate of organization is filed in a state other 
than Iowa, has received a certificate of authority to transact business in Iowa and the certificate 
has not been revoked or canceled.

NoYes

309-6001 (09-15)



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS FORM  00 43 36 - 1 
 

SECTION 00 43 36 

PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS FORM 

PARTICULARS 

1.01 HEREWITH IS THE LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS REFERENCED IN THE BID SUBMITTED BY: 

1.02 (BIDDER) ____________________________________ 

1.03 TO (OWNER ):  WOODBURY COUNTY 

1.04 DATED ___________________ AND WHICH IS AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE BID FORM. 

1.05 THE FOLLOWING WORK WILL BE PERFORMED (OR PROVIDED) BY SUBCONTRACTORS 
AND COORDINATED BY US: 

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

 WORK SUBJECT / SUBCONTRACTOR NAME 

A. _______________________________________________________________ 

B. _______________________________________________________________ 

C. _______________________________________________________________ 

D. _______________________________________________________________ 

E. _______________________________________________________________ 

F. _______________________________________________________________ 

G. _______________________________________________________________ 

H. _______________________________________________________________ 

I. _______________________________________________________________ 

J. _______________________________________________________________ 

K. _______________________________________________________________ 

L. _______________________________________________________________ 

M. _______________________________________________________________ 

N. _______________________________________________________________ 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

CONTRACTING FORMS AND SUPPLEMENTS  00 50 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 00 50 00 

CONTRACTING FORMS AND SUPPLEMENTS 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 AGREEMENT AND CONDITIONS OF THE CONTRACT 

A. The Agreement form is AIA A101. 

B. The General Conditions form is AIA A201. 

1. See Section 00 73 00 - General Conditions. 

1.02 FORMS 

A. Use the following forms for the specified purposes unless otherwise indicated elsewhere in  
Contract Documents. 

B. Post-Award Certificates and Other Forms: 

1. Schedule of Values Form:  AIA G703. 

2. Application for Payment Forms:  AIA G702 with AIA G703 (for Contractors). 

C. Clarification and Modification Forms: 

1. Substitution Request Form (During Construction):  see Section 01 60 10 

2. Architect's Supplemental Instructions Form:  AIA G710. 

3. Construction Change Directive Form:  AIA G714. 

4. Change Order Form:  AIA G701. 

D. Closeout Forms: 

1. Certificate of Substantial Completion Form:  AIA G704. 

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS 

A. AIA A101 - Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of 
payment is s Stipulated Sum 

B. AIA A201 - General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 

C. AIA G701 - Change Order. 

D. AIA G702 - Application and Certificate for Payment. 

E. AIA G703 - Continuation Sheet. 

F. AIA G704 - Certificate of Substantial Completion. 

G. AIA G710 - Architect's Supplemental Instructions. 

H. AIA G714 - Construction Change Directive. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 

 















































































































Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS  00 7300 - 1 
 

SECTION 00 7300 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 

PART 1 GENERAL 

1.01 SUMMARY 

A. These Supplementary Conditions amend and supplement the General Conditions defined in 
Document 00 72 00 - General Conditions and other provisions of the Contract Documents as 
indicated below. Provisions that are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and 
effect. 

B. The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions that are defined in the General Conditions 
have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions. 

1.02 MODIFICATIONS TO GENERAL CONDITIONS 

A. Add Paragraph 11.2.1.1: The Owner shall purchase and maintain in a Company or Companies 
lawfully authorized to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, Property 
Insurance written on a Builder's Risk "All risk" or equivalent policy form in the amount of the 
initial contract sum, plus value of subsequent contract modifications and cost of materials 
supplied or installed by others, comprising total value for the entire Project at the site on a 
replacement cost basis without optional deductibles. 

B. Article 13 - Miscellaneous Provisions: Add Paragraph 13.6: Should any uncharted underground 
obstructions be encountered, that would cause a change in location of utility lines or building 
lines from that shown on the Drawings, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and obtain 
approval prior to proceeding with the Work. Any resultant change in the Contract Sum will be 
processed by Change Order. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3 EXECUTION - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

SUMMARY  01 10 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 10 00 

SUMMARY 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 PROJECT 

A. Project Name:  Law Enforcement Center Demo, Woodbury County 

 407 7th St. 

 Sioux City, IA 51101 

B. Owner's Name:  Woodbury County 

 620 Douglas St. 

 Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

1.02 DESIGN PROFESSIONALS 

A. Architect:  CMBA Architects. 

B. Civil Engineer:  Olsson 

C. Additional Project contact information is shown on Project Manual cover. 

1.03 CONTRACT DESCRIPTION 

A. Contract Type:  Single prime contract based on a Stipulated Price 

1.04 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

A. The Law Enforcement Center Demo, Woodbury County project includes the following work: 

 Demolition of the existing three-story building that previously functioned as a law 
enforcement center with sheriff’s offices and jail cells, removal of debris, termination of 
existing utilities and return of site to development ready. 

B. Scope of demolition and removal is shown on drawings and specified in Section 02 41 00. 

C. Scope of alterations and new construction work is shown on drawings. 

D. Services (Including but not limited to Plumbing, HVAC,  Electrical Power and Lighting, Fire 
Protection, Telecommunications, and Security):  Disconnect and terminate as shown on 
drawings. 

E. Owner will remove the following items before start of work: 

1. Furnishings. 

2. Portable and small wall-mounted equipment. 

F. Contractor is required to remove and deliver the following to Owner prior to start of work: 

1. Items as identified in the Demolition plans. 

2. Additional items identified by the Owner at pre-demolition walk-through. 

G. Contractor is required to remove and store the following prior to start of work, for later 
reinstallation by Contractor: 

1. Items as identified in the Demolition plans as salvaged. 

2. Additional items as identified during pre-demolition walk-through. 

1.08 CONTRACTOR USE OF SITE AND PREMISES 

A. Construction Operations:  Limited to areas noted on Drawings. 

1. Locate and conduct construction activities in ways that will limit disturbance to site. 

B. Arrange use of site and premises to allow: 

1. Work by Others. 

2. Use of site and premises by the public. 

C. Provide access to and from site as required by law and by Owner: 

1. Emergency Building Exits During Demolition:  Keep all exits required by code open during 
demolition period; provide temporary exit signs if exit routes are temporarily altered. 

2. Do not obstruct roadways, sidewalks, or other public ways without permit. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

SUMMARY  01 10 00 - 2 
 

1.09 WORK RESTRICTIONS 

A. Existing building spaces may not be used for storage, except as allowed by the Owner's 
representative. 

B. Time Restrictions: 

1. Limit conduct of especially noisy, malodorous, and dusty interior and exterior work to the 
hours of _coordinate with Owner______. 

2. Coordinate all work with school event schedule. 

C. Utility Outages and Shutdown: 

1. Prevent accidental disruption of utility services to other facilities. 

D. Controlled Substances:  Use of tobacco products and other controlled substances on campus 
is not permitted. 

E. Contractor shall not staff Registered Sex Offenders on site whether performing general, 
subcontract or any other form of work. 

1.11 DEFINITIONS AND EXPLANATIONS 

A. Except as otherwise indicated, requirements expressed are to be performed by the Contractor 
as if preceded by the phrase “The Contractor shall”. 

B. The term “provide” means furnish and install, complete, and ready for intended use. Except as 
otherwise defined in greater detail, the term “furnish” means supply and deliver to the project 
site, including unloading, unpacking, inspecting, and storing until ready for receipt by Owner, 
installation, etc., as applicable. 

C. The term “indicated” is as cross-reference to graphics, notes or schedules on drawings, to other 
paragraphs or schedules in the specifications, and to similar means of recording requirements 
in contract documents. Where terms such as “shows”, “noted”, “schedules”, and “specified” are 
used in lieu of “indicated”, it is for purpose of helping reader locate cross-reference, and no 
limitations of location is intended. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES  01 20 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 20 00 

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Procedures for preparation and submittal of applications for progress payments. 

B. Documentation of changes in Contract Sum and Contract Time. 

C. Change procedures. 

D. Procedures for preparation and submittal of application for final payment. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

A. Section 00 72 00 - General Conditions and Document 00 73 00 - Supplementary Conditions: 
Additional requirements for progress payments, final payment, changes in the Work. 

1.03 SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

A. Use Schedule of Values Form:  AIA G703, edition stipulated in the Agreement. 

B. Electronic media printout including equivalent information will be considered in lieu of standard 
form specified; submit draft to Architect for approval. 

C. Forms filled out by hand will not be accepted. 

D. Submit Schedule of Values in duplicate within 15 days after date established in Notice to 
Proceed. 

E. Format:  Utilize the Table of Contents of this Project Manual. Identify each line item with 
number and title of the specification Section.  Identify site mobilization and bonds and 
insurance. 

F. Include in each line item, the amount of Allowances specified in this section.  For unit cost 
Allowances, identify quantities taken from Contract Documents multiplied by the unit cost to 
achieve the total for the item. 

G. Revise schedule to list approved Change Orders, with each Application For Payment. 

1.04 APPLICATIONS FOR PROGRESS PAYMENTS 

A. Payment Period:  Submit at intervals stipulated in the Agreement. 

B. Use Form AIA G702 and Form AIA G703, edition stipulated in the Agreement. 

C. Electronic media printout including equivalent information will be considered in lieu of standard 
form specified; submit sample to Architect for approval. 

D. Forms filled out by hand will not be accepted. 

E. For each item, provide a column for listing each of the following: 

1. Item Number. 

2. Description of work. 

3. Scheduled Values. 

4. Previous Applications. 

5. Work in Place and Stored Materials under this Application. 

6. Authorized Change Orders. 

7. Total Completed and Stored to Date of Application. 

8. Percentage of Completion. 

9. Balance to Finish. 

10. Retainage. 

F. Execute certification by signature of authorized officer. 

G. Use data from approved Schedule of Values.  Provide dollar value in each column for each line 
item for portion of work performed and for stored products. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES  01 20 00 - 2 
 

H. List each authorized Change Order as a separate line item, listing Change Order number and 
dollar amount as for an original item of work. 

I. Submit one electronic and three hard-copies of each Application for Payment. 

J. Include the following with the application: 

1. Transmittal letter as specified for submittals in Section 01 30 00. 

2. Construction progress schedule, revised and current as specified in Section 01 30 00. 

3. Partial release of liens from major subcontractors and vendors. 

4. Project record documents as specified in Section 01 78 00, for review by Owner which will 
be returned to the Contractor. 

5. Affidavits attesting to off-site stored products. 

K. When Architect requires substantiating information, submit data justifying dollar amounts in 
question.  Provide one copy of data with cover letter for each copy of submittal. Show 
application number and date, and line item by number and description. 

1.05 MODIFICATION PROCEDURES 

A. Submit name of the individual authorized to receive change documents and who will be 
responsible for informing others in Contractor's employ or subcontractors of changes to  
Contract Documents. 

B. For minor changes not involving an adjustment to the Contract Sum or Contract Time, Architect 
will issue instructions directly to Contractor. 

C. For other required changes, Architect will issue a document signed by Owner instructing 
Contractor to proceed with the change, for subsequent inclusion in a Change Order. 

1. The document will describe the required changes and will designate method of 
determining any change in Contract Sum or Contract Time. 

2. Promptly execute the change. 

D. For changes for which advance pricing is desired, Architect will issue a document that includes 
a detailed description of a proposed change with supplementary or revised drawings and 
specifications, a change in Contract Time for executing the change with a stipulation of any 
overtime work required and the period of time during which the requested price will be 
considered valid.  Contractor shall prepare and submit an estimated price quotation within 14 
days. 

E. Contractor may propose a change by submitting a request for change to Architect, describing 
the proposed change and its full effect on the work, with a statement describing the reason for 
the change, and the effect on the Contract Sum and Contract Time with full documentation.  
Document any requested substitutions in accordance with Section 01 60 00. 

F. Computation of Change in Contract Amount:  As specified in the Agreement and Conditions of 
the Contract. 

1. For change requested by Architect for work falling under a fixed price contract, the amount 
will be based on Contractor's price quotation. 

2. For change requested by Contractor, the amount will be based on the Contractor's request 
for a Change Order as approved by Architect. 

3. For pre-determined unit prices and quantities, the amount will based on the fixed unit 
prices. 

4. For change ordered by Architect without a quotation from Contractor, the amount will be 
determined by Architect based on the Contractor's substantiation of costs as specified for 
Time and Material work. 

G. Substantiation of Costs:  Provide full information required for evaluation. 

1. On request, provide the following data: 

a. Quantities of products, labor, and equipment. 

b. Taxes, insurance, and bonds. 

c. Overhead and profit. 

d. Justification for any change in Contract Time. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

PRICE AND PAYMENT PROCEDURES  01 20 00 - 3 
 

e. Credit for deletions from Contract, similarly documented. 

2. Support each claim for additional costs with additional information: 

a. Origin and date of claim. 

b. Dates and times work was performed, and by whom. 

c. Time records and wage rates paid. 

d. Invoices and receipts for products, equipment, and subcontracts, similarly 
documented. 

3. For Time and Material work, submit itemized account and supporting data after completion 
of change, within time limits indicated in the Conditions of the Contract. 

H. Execution of Change Orders:  Architect will issue Change Orders for signatures of parties as 
provided in the Conditions of the Contract. 

I. After execution of Change Order, promptly revise Schedule of Values and Application for 
Payment forms to record each authorized Change Order as a separate line item and adjust the 
Contract Sum. 

J. Promptly revise progress schedules to reflect any change in Contract Time, revise sub-
schedules to adjust times for other items of work affected by the change, and resubmit. 

K. Promptly enter changes in Project Record Documents. 

1.06 APPLICATION FOR FINAL PAYMENT 

A. Prepare Application for Final Payment as specified for progress payments, identifying total 
adjusted Contract Sum, previous payments, and sum remaining due. 

B. Application for Final Payment will not be considered until the following have been 
accomplished: 

1. All closeout procedures specified in Section 01 70 00. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  01 30 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 30 00 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. General administrative requirements. 

B. Electronic document submittal service. 

C. Preconstruction meeting. 

D. Progress meetings. 

F. Demolition schedule. 

H. Submittals for review, information, and project closeout. 

I. Number of copies of submittals. 

J. Requests for Information (RFI) procedures. 

K. Submittal procedures. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

A. Section 00 72 00 - General Conditions:  Dates for applications for payment. 

B. Section 01 60 00 - Product Requirements:  General product requirements. 

C. Section 01 70 00 - Execution and Closeout Requirements:  Additional coordination. 
requirements. 

D. Section 01 78 00 - Closeout Submittals:  Project record documents; operation and maintenance 
data; warranties and bonds. 

1.03 PROJECT COORDINATOR 

A. Project Coordinator:  Contractor 

B. Cooperate with the Project Coordinator in allocation of mobilization areas of site; for field offices 
and sheds, for site access, traffic, and parking facilities. 

C. During construction, coordinate use of site and facilities through the Project Coordinator. 

D. Comply with Project Coordinator's procedures for intra-project communications; submittals, 
reports and records, schedules, coordination drawings, and recommendations; and resolution 
of ambiguities and conflicts. 

E. Comply with instructions of the Project Coordinator for use of temporary utilities and 
construction facilities.  Responsibility for providing temporary utilities and construction facilities 
is identified in Section 01 10 00 - Summary. 

F. Coordinate field engineering and layout work under instructions of the Project Coordinator. 

G. Make the following types of submittals to Architect through the Project Coordinator: 

1. Requests for Information. 

2. Requests for substitution. 

3. Shop drawings, product data, and samples. 

4. Test and inspection reports. 

5. Design data. 

6. Manufacturer's instructions and field reports. 

7. Applications for payment and change order requests. 

8. Progress schedules. 

9. Coordination drawings. 

10. Correction Punch List and Final Correction Punch List for Substantial Completion. 

11. Closeout submittals. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  01 30 00 - 2 
 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION 

3.01 ELECTRONIC DOCUMENT SUBMITTAL SERVICE 

A. All documents transmitted for purposes of administration of the contract are to be in electronic 
(PDF, MS Word, or MS Excel) format, as appropriate to the document, and transmitted via an 
Internet-based submittal service that receives, logs and stores documents, provides electronic 
stamping and signatures, and notifies addressees via email. 

1. The web-based software will provide status logs, reports, searching and automated 
notifications. 

2. Besides submittals for review, information, and closeout, this procedure applies to 
Requests for Information (RFIs), progress documentation, contract modification 
documents (e.g. supplementary instructions, change proposals, change orders), 
applications for payment, field reports and meeting minutes, Contractor's correction 
punchlist, and any other document any participant wishes to make part of the project 
record. 

3. Contractor and Architect are required to use this service. 

4. It is Contractor's responsibility to submit documents in allowable format. 

5. Subcontractors and Architect's consultants are to be permitted to use the service at no 
extra charge. 

6. Users of the service need an email address, internet access, and PDF review software 
that includes ability to mark up and apply electronic stamps (such as Adobe Acrobat, 
www.adobe.com, or Bluebeam PDF Revu, www.bluebeam.com), unless such software 
capability is provided by the service provider. 

7. Paper document transmittals will not be reviewed; emailed electronic documents will not 
be reviewed. 

8. All other specified submittal and document transmission procedures apply, except that 
electronic document requirements do not apply to samples or color selection charts, which 
shall be delivered by mail or courier. 

B. Cost:  The cost of the service is to be paid by Contractor; include the cost of the service in the 
Contract Sum. 

C. Submittal Service:  Use one of the following: 

1. Submittal Exchange (tel: 1-800-714-0024):  www.submittalexchange.com/#sle. 

2. ProCore Construction Management Software 

D. Training:  One, one-hour, web-based training session will be arranged for all participants, with 
representatives of Architect and Contractor participating; further training is the responsibility of 
the user of the service. 

E. Project Closeout:  Architect will determine when to terminate the service for the project and is 
responsible for obtaining archive copies of files for Owner. 

3.02 PRE-DEMOLITION MEETING 

A. Project Coordinator will schedule a meeting after Notice of Award. 

B. Attendance Required: 

1. Owner. 

2. Architect. 

3. Contractor. 

4. Major subcontractors. 

C. Agenda: 

1. Execution of Owner-Contractor Agreement. 

2. Submission of executed bonds and insurance certificates. 

3. Distribution of Contract Documents. 

4. Submission of list of subcontractors, demolition schedule. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  01 30 00 - 3 
 

6. Designation of personnel representing the parties to Contract, the Owner's Representative 
and Architect. 

7. Procedures and processing of field decisions, submittals, substitutions, applications for 
payments, proposal request, Change Orders, and Contract closeout procedures. 

8. Scheduling. 

9. Scheduling activities of a Geotechnical Engineer. 

D. Project Coordinator will record minutes and distribute copies within two (2) days after meeting 
to participants, with  copies to Architect, Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions 
made. 

1. Minutes will be distributed through Web-based project management software system. 

3.03 PROGRESS MEETINGS 

A. Project Coordinator will make arrangements for meetings, prepare agenda with copies for 
participants, preside at meetings. 

B. Attendance Required: 

1. Contractor. 

2. Owner. 

3. Architect. 

4. Contractor's superintendent. 

5. Major subcontractors. 

D. Project Coordinator will record minutes and distribute copies within two (2) days after meeting 
to participants, with  copies to Architect, Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions 
made. 

1. Minutes will be distributed through Web based project management software system 

3.04 DEMOLITION SCHEDULE 

A. Within 10 days after date of the Agreement, submit preliminary schedule defining planned 
operations for the first 60 days of work, with a general outline for remainder of work. 

B. If preliminary schedule requires revision after review, submit revised schedule within 10 days. 

C. Submit updated schedule with each Application for Payment. 

3.05 REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION (RFI) 

A. Definition:  A request seeking one of the following: 

1. An interpretation, amplification, or clarification of some requirement of Contract 
Documents arising from inability to determine from them the exact material, process, or 
system to be installed; or when the elements of construction are required to occupy the 
same space (interference); or when an item of work is described differently at more than 
one place in Contract Documents. 

2. A resolution to an issue which has arisen due to field conditions and affects design intent. 

B. Whenever possible, request clarifications at the next appropriate project progress meeting, with 
response entered into meeting minutes, rendering unnecessary the issuance of a formal RFI. 

C. Preparation:  Prepare an RFI immediately upon discovery of a need for interpretation of 
Contract Documents.  Failure to submit a RFI in a timely manner is not a legitimate cause for 
claiming additional costs or delays in execution of the work. 

1. Prepare a separate RFI for each specific item. 

a. Review, coordinate, and comment on requests originating with subcontractors and/or 
materials suppliers. 

b. Do not forward requests which solely require internal coordination between 
subcontractors. 

2. Prepare in a format and with content acceptable to Owner. 

3. Prepare using software provided by the Electronic Document Submittal Service. 

4. Combine RFI and its attachments into a single electronic file.  PDF format is preferred. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  01 30 00 - 4 
 

D. Reason for the RFI:  Prior to initiation of an RFI, carefully study all Contract Documents to 
confirm that information sufficient for their interpretation is definitely not included. 

1. Include in each request Contractor's signature attesting to good faith effort to determine 
from Contract Documents information requiring interpretation. 

E. Content:  Include identifiers necessary for tracking the status of each RFI, and information 
necessary to provide an actionable response. 

7. Contractor's suggested resolution:  A written and/or a graphic solution, to scale, is 
required in cases where clarification of coordination issues is involved, for example; 
routing, clearances, and/or specific locations of work shown diagrammatically in Contract 
Documents.  If applicable, state the likely impact of the suggested resolution on Contract 
Time or the Contract Sum. 

F. Attachments:  Include sketches, coordination drawings, descriptions, photos, submittals, and 
other information necessary to substantiate the reason for the request. 

G. RFI Log:  Maintain and print "hard copy" reports for progress meeting.  Reports to contain: 

1. Indicate current status of every RFI.  Update log promptly and on a regular basis. 

2. Note dates of when each request is made, and when a response is received. 

3. Highlight items requiring priority or expedited response. 

4. Highlight items for which a timely response has not been received to date. 

5. Identify and include improper or frivolous RFIs. 

H. Review Time:  Architect will respond and return RFIs to Contractor within seven calendar days 
of receipt.  For the purpose of establishing the start of the mandated response period, RFIs 
received after 12:00 noon will be considered as having been received on the following regular 
working day. 

1. Response period may be shortened or lengthened for specific items, subject to mutual 
agreement, and recorded in a timely manner in progress meeting minutes. 

I. Responses:  Content of answered RFIs will not constitute in any manner a directive or 
authorization to perform extra work or delay the project.  If in Contractor's belief it is likely to 
lead to a change to Contract Sum or Contract Time, promptly issue a notice to this effect, and 
follow up with an appropriate Change Order request to Owner. 

1. Do not extend applicability of a response to specific item to encompass other similar 
conditions, unless specifically so noted in the response. 

2. Upon receipt of a response, promptly review and distribute it to all affected parties, and 
update the RFI Log. 

3. Notify Architect within seven calendar days if an additional or corrected response is 
required by submitting an amended version of the original RFI, identified as specified 
above. 

3.06 SUBMITTALS FOR REVIEW 

A. When the following are specified in individual sections, submit them for review: 

1. Product data. 

5. Other types indicated. 

B. Submit to Architect for review for the limited purpose of checking for compliance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in Contract Documents. 

C. Submit for Architect's knowledge as contract administrator or for Owner. 

3.07 SUBMITTALS FOR PROJECT CLOSEOUT 

A. Submit Correction Punch List for Substantial Completion. 

B. Submit Final Correction Punch List for Substantial Completion. 

C. When the following are specified in individual sections, submit them at project closeout in 
compliance with requirements of Section 01 78 00 - Closeout Submittals: 

1. Project record documents. 

2. Bonds. 

3. Other types as indicated. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS  01 30 00 - 5 
 

D. Submit for Owner's benefit during and after project completion. 

3.08 SUBMITTAL REVIEW 

A. Submittals for Review:  Architect will review each submittal, and approve, or take other 
appropriate action. 

B. Submittals for Information:  Architect will acknowledge receipt and review.  See below for 
actions to be taken. 

C. Architect's actions will be reflected by marking each returned submittal using virtual stamp on 
electronic submittals. 

1. Notations may be made directly on submitted items and/or listed on appended Submittal 
Review cover sheet. 

D. Architect's and consultants' actions on items submitted for review: 

1. Authorizing purchasing, fabrication, delivery, and installation: 

a. "Reviewed", or language with same legal meaning. 

b. "Make Corrections Noted", or language with same legal meaning. 

1) At Contractor's option, submit corrected item, with review notations 
acknowledged and incorporated. 

c. "Approved as Noted, Resubmit for Record", or language with same legal meaning. 

1) Resubmit corrected item, with review notations acknowledged and incorporated.  
Resubmit separately, or as part of project record documents. 

2) Non-responsive resubmittals may be rejected. 

2. Not Authorizing fabrication, delivery, and installation: 

a. "Revise and Resubmit". 

1) Resubmit revised item, with review notations acknowledged and incorporated. 

2) Non-responsive resubmittals may be rejected. 

b. "Rejected". 

1) Submit item complying with requirements of Contract Documents. 

E. Architect's and consultants' actions on items submitted for information: 

1. Items for which no action was taken: 

a. "Received" -  to notify the Contractor that the submittal has been received for record 
only. 

2. Items for which action was taken: 

a. "Reviewed" - no further action is required from Contractor. 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  01 40 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 40 00 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Submittals. 

B. Quality assurance. 

C. References and standards. 

D. Testing and inspection agencies and services. 

E. Contractor's construction-related professional design services. 

F. Contractor's design-related professional design services. 

G. Control of installation. 

H. Tolerances. 

I. Manufacturers' field services. 

J. Defect Assessment. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

A. Document 00 72 00 - General Conditions:  Inspections and approvals required by public  
authorities. 

B. Section 01 30 00 - Administrative Requirements:  Submittal procedures. 

C. Section 01 60 00 - Product Requirements:  Requirements for material and product quality. 

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS 

A. ASTM C1021 - Standard Practice for Laboratories Engaged in Testing of Building Sealants. 

B. ASTM C1077 - Standard Practice for Agencies Testing Concrete and Concrete Aggregates for 
Use in Construction and Criteria for Testing Agency Evaluation. 

C. ASTM C1093 - Standard Practice for Accreditation of Testing Agencies for Masonry. 

D. ASTM D3740 - Standard Practice for Minimum Requirements for Agencies Engaged in Testing 
and/or Inspection of Soil and Rock as Used in Engineering Design and Construction. 

E. ASTM E329 - Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection, 
Testing, or Special Inspection. 

F. ASTM E543 - Standard Specification for Agencies Performing Nondestructive Testing. 

G. ASTM E699 - Standard Specification for Agencies Involved in Testing, Quality Assurance, and 
Evaluating of Manufactured Building Components. 

H. IAS AC89 - Accreditation Criteria for Testing Laboratories. 

1.04 DEFINITIONS 

A. Contractor's Quality Control Plan:  Contractor's management plan for executing the Contract for 
Construction. 

B. Contractor's Professional Design Services:  Design of some aspect or portion of the project by 
party other than the design professional of record.  Provide these services as part of the 
Contract for Construction. 

1. Design Services Types Required: 

a. Construction-Related:  Services Contractor needs to provide in order to carry out the 
Contractor’s sole responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, and procedures. 

b. Design-Related:  Design services explicitly required to be performed by another 
design professional due to highly-technical and/or specialized nature of a portion of 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  01 40 00 - 2 
 

the project.  Services primarily involve engineering analysis, calculations, and design, 
and are not intended to alter the aesthetic aspects of the design. 

C. Design Data:  Design-related, signed and sealed drawings, calculations, specifications, 
certifications, shop drawings and other submittals provided by Contractor, and prepared directly 
by, or under direct supervision of, appropriately licensed design professional. 

1.05 CONTRACTOR'S CONSTRUCTION-RELATED PROFESSIONAL DESIGN SERVICES 

A. Coordination:  Contractor's professional design services are subject to requirements of project's 
Conditions for Construction Contract. 

B. Provide such engineering design services as may be necessary to plan and safely conduct 
certain construction operations, pertaining to, but not limited to the following: 

1. Temporary sheeting, shoring, or supports. 

2. Temporary scaffolding. 

3. Temporary bracing. 

4. Temporary foundation underpinning. 

5. Temporary stairs or steps required for construction access only. 

6. Temporary hoist(s) and rigging. 

7. Investigation of soil conditions and design of temporary foundations to support 
construction equipment. 

1.06 CONTRACTOR'S DESIGN-RELATED PROFESSIONAL DESIGN SERVICES 

A. Coordination:  Contractor's professional design services are subject to requirements of project's 
Conditions for Construction Contract. 

B. Base design on performance and/or design criteria indicated in individual specification sections. 

1. Submit a Request for Information to Architect if the criteria indicated are not sufficient to 
perform required design services. 

1.07 SUBMITTALS 

A. See Section 01 30 00 - Administrative Requirements, for submittal procedures. 

B. Design Data:  Submit for Architect's knowledge as contract administrator for the limited purpose 
of assessing compliance with information given and the design concept expressed in the 
Contract Documents, or for Owner's information. 

1. Include calculations that have been used to demonstrate compliance to performance and 
regulatory criteria provided, and to determine design solutions. 

2. Include required product data and shop drawings. 

3. Include a statement or certification attesting that design data complies with criteria 
indicated, such as building codes, loads, functional, and similar engineering requirements. 

4. Include signature and seal of design professional responsible for allocated design services 
on calculations and drawings. 

C. Test Reports:  After each test/inspection, promptly submit two copies of report to Architect and 
to Contractor. 

1. Include: 

a. Date issued. 

b. Project title and number. 

c. Name of inspector. 

d. Date and time of sampling or inspection. 

e. Identification of product and specifications section. 

f. Location in the Project. 

g. Type of test/inspection. 

h. Date of test/inspection. 

i. Results of test/inspection. 

j. Compliance with Contract Documents. 

k. When requested by Architect, provide interpretation of results. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  01 40 00 - 3 
 

2. Test report submittals are for Architect's knowledge as contract administrator for the 
limited purpose of assessing compliance with information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents, or for Owner's information. 

D. Certificates:  When specified in individual specification sections, submit certification by the 
manufacturer and Contractor or installation/application subcontractor to Architect, in quantities 
specified for Product Data. 

1. Indicate material or product complies with or exceeds specified requirements.  Submit 
supporting reference data, affidavits, and certifications as appropriate. 

2. Certificates may be recent or previous test results on material or product, but must be 
acceptable to Architect. 

E. Manufacturer's Instructions:  When specified in individual specification sections, submit printed 
instructions for delivery, storage, assembly, installation, start-up, adjusting, and finishing, for the 
Owner's information.  Indicate special procedures, perimeter conditions requiring special 
attention, and special environmental criteria required for application or installation. 

F. Manufacturer's Field Reports:  Submit reports for Architect's benefit as contract administrator or 
for Owner. 

1. Submit report within 14 days of observation to Architect for information. 

2. Submit for information for the limited purpose of assessing compliance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. 

1.08 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Designer Qualifications:  Where professional engineering design services and design data 
submittals are specifically required of Contractor by Contract Documents, provide services of a 
Professional Engineer experienced in design of this type of work and licensed in the State in 
which the Project is located. 

1.09 REFERENCES AND STANDARDS 

A. For products and workmanship specified by reference to a document or documents not 
included in the Project Manual, also referred to as reference standards, comply with 
requirements of the standard, except when more rigid requirements are specified or are 
required by applicable codes. 

B. Comply with reference standard of date of issue current on date of Contract Documents, except 
where a specific date is established by applicable code. 

C. Obtain copies of standards where required by product specification sections. 

D. Maintain copy at project site during submittals, planning, and progress of the specific work, until 
Substantial Completion. 

E. Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification 
from Architect before proceeding. 

F. Neither the contractual relationships, duties, or responsibilities of the parties in Contract nor 
those of Architect shall be altered from Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise 
in any reference document. 

1.10 TESTING AND INSPECTION AGENCIES AND SERVICES 

A. Owner will employ and pay for services of an independent testing agency to perform specified 
testing and inspection. 

B. Employment of agency in no way relieves Contractor of obligation to perform Work in 
accordance with requirements of Contract Documents. 

C. Contractor Employed Agency: 

1. Testing agency:  Comply with requirements of ASTM E329, ASTM E543, ASTM E699, 
ASTM C1021, ASTM C1077, ASTM C1093, and ASTM D3740. 

2. Inspection agency:  Comply with requirements of ASTM D3740 and ASTM E329. 

3. Laboratory Qualifications:  Accredited by IAS according to IAS AC89. 

4. Laboratory:  Authorized to operate in the State in which the Project is located. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  01 40 00 - 4 
 

5. Laboratory Staff:  Maintain a full time specialist on staff to review services. 

6. Testing Equipment:  Calibrated at reasonable intervals either by NIST or using an NIST 
established Measurement Assurance Program, under a laboratory measurement quality 
assurance program. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION 

3.01 CONTROL OF INSTALLATION 

A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site conditions, and 
workmanship, to produce work of specified quality. 

B. Comply with manufacturers' instructions, including each step in sequence. 

C. Should manufacturers' instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from 
Architect before proceeding. 

D. Comply with specified standards as minimum quality for the work except where more stringent 
tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher standards or more precise 
workmanship. 

E. Have work performed by persons qualified to produce required and specified quality. 

F. Verify that field measurements are as indicated on shop drawings or as instructed by the 
manufacturer. 

G. Secure products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand 
stresses, vibration, physical distortion, and disfigurement. 

3.02 TOLERANCES 

A. Monitor fabrication and installation tolerance control of products to produce acceptable Work.  
Do not permit tolerances to accumulate. 

B. Comply with manufacturers' tolerances.  Should manufacturers' tolerances conflict with 
Contract Documents, request clarification from Architect before proceeding. 

C. Adjust products to appropriate dimensions; position before securing products in place. 

3.03 TESTING AND INSPECTION 

A. See individual specification sections for testing and inspection required. 

B. Testing Agency Duties: 

1. Test samples of mixes submitted by Contractor. 

2. Provide qualified personnel at site.  Cooperate with Architect and Contractor in 
performance of services. 

3. Perform specified sampling and testing of products in accordance with specified 
standards. 

4. Ascertain compliance of materials and mixes with requirements of Contract Documents. 

5. Promptly notify Architect and Contractor of observed irregularities or non-compliance of 
Work or products. 

6. Perform additional tests and inspections required by Architect. 

7. Attend preconstruction meetings and progress meetings. 

8. Submit reports of all tests/inspections specified. 

C. Limits on Testing/Inspection Agency Authority: 

1. Agency may not release, revoke, alter, or enlarge on requirements of Contract 
Documents. 

2. Agency may not approve or accept any portion of the Work. 

3. Agency may not assume any duties of Contractor. 

4. Agency has no authority to stop the Work. 

D. Contractor Responsibilities: 

1. Deliver to agency at designated location, adequate samples of materials proposed to be 
used that require testing, along with proposed mix designs. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

QUALITY REQUIREMENTS  01 40 00 - 5 
 

2. Cooperate with laboratory personnel, and provide access to the Work and to 
manufacturers' facilities. 

3. Provide incidental labor and facilities: 

a. To provide access to Work to be tested/inspected. 

b. To obtain and handle samples at the site or at source of Products to be 
tested/inspected. 

c. To facilitate tests/inspections. 

d. To provide storage and curing of test samples. 

4. Notify Architect and laboratory 24 hours prior to expected time for operations requiring 
testing/inspection services. 

5. Employ services of an independent qualified testing laboratory and pay for additional 
samples, tests, and inspections required by Contractor beyond specified requirements. 

6. Arrange with Owner's agency and pay for additional samples, tests, and inspections 
required by Contractor beyond specified requirements. 

E. Re-testing required because of non-compliance with specified requirements shall be performed 
by the same agency on instructions by Architect. 

F. Re-testing required because of non-compliance with specified requirements shall be paid for by 
Contractor. 

3.04 MANUFACTURERS' FIELD SERVICES 

A. When specified in individual specification sections, require material or product suppliers or 
manufacturers to provide qualified staff personnel to observe site conditions, conditions of 
surfaces and installation, quality of workmanship, start-up of equipment, test, adjust and 
balance of equipment  as applicable, and to initiate instructions when necessary. 

B. Report observations and site decisions or instructions given to applicators or installers that are 
supplemental or contrary to manufacturers' written instructions. 

3.05 DEFECT ASSESSMENT 

A. Replace Work or portions of the Work not complying with specified requirements. 

B. If, in the opinion of Architect, it is not practical to remove and replace the work, Architect will 
direct an appropriate remedy or adjust payment. 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS  01 50 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 50 00 

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Temporary utilities: Water, Electricity, lighting 

B. Temporary telecommunications services. 

C. Temporary sanitary facilities. 

D. Temporary Controls:  Barriers, enclosures, and fencing. 

E. Security requirements. 

F. Vehicular access and parking. 

G. Waste removal facilities and services. 

H. Project identification sign. 

I. Field offices. 

1.02 GENERAL 

A. Install temporary facilities and utilities in conformance with State and Local Codes and 
requirements. 

B. Trade Contractors to obtain and pay for required applications, permits and inspections. 

C. Maintenance:  Temporary facilities and utilities are to be maintained and kept in good operating 
condition.  Maintenance men necessary to perform this work shall be provided in accordance 
with requirements.  Maintenance time will include normal working hours for all trades and start 
up and shut down overtime as required. 

D. Removals:  Subject to approval of Project Coordinator, contractor providing temporary facilities 
or services shall remove same when no longer required or when their function is replaced by 
authorized use of permanent facilities.  Other removal time may be directed by Project 
Coordinator. 

E. Install temporary work in such a manner as not to interfere with the permanent construction. 

F. Disclaimer:  Specific administrative and procedural minimum actions are specified in this 
section, as extension of provisions in General Conditions and other contract documents.  These 
requirements have been included for special purposes as indicated.  Nothing in this section is 
intended to limit types and amounts of temporary work required, and no omission from this 
section will be recognized as an indication by Architect, Engineer or Project Coordinator that 
such temporary activity is not required for successful completion of the work and compliance 
with requirements of contract documents.  Provisions of this section are applicable to, but not 
by way of limitation, utility services, construction facilities, security/protection provisions, and 
support facilities. 

1.03 TEMPORARY UTILITIES 

A. Provide and pay for all water required for demolition purposes. 

B. Provide and pay for all power and lighting required for demolition purposes. 

C. Temporary light and power: 

1. General Contractor: 

a. Provide temporary light and power for its own construction field office. 

b. Provide and pay for its own extensions for lights or power tools beyond the receptacle 
outlets provided below. 

c. Provide temporary light and power distribution for demolition purposes for all trades 
including the cost of running temporary service from the utility supply.  The temporary 
lighting and power system shall comply with all applicable OSHA regulations. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS  01 50 00 - 2 
 

1) Temporary power to be sufficient to operate all "light tools" and equipment 
(electric arc welders excluded). 

2) Additional temporary power required by other trades to be furnished, at their 
cost, up to the power available. 

2. Temporary lighting distribution to be made from the temporary panels indicated above.   

a. Replace lamps, fuses, including theft, throughout the life of the project. 

b. Install and maintain a reasonably balanced system and take current readings on the 
feeders at regular intervals as required.  Correct any serious phase unbalance. 

c. Protect the installation against weather damage, normal operations of other trades, 
and other persons on the site.  Be responsible for the proper use and maintenance of 
temporary wiring systems until they are removed. 

1.04 TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES 

A. Provide, maintain, and pay for telecommunications services to field office at time of project 
mobilization. 

B. Telecommunications services shall include: 

1. Windows-based personal computer dedicated to project telecommunications, with 
necessary software and laser printer. 

2. Internet Connections:  Minimum of one; DSL modem or faster. 

3. Telephone:  Superintendent must be able to be reached on a mobile phone. 

4. Email: Superintendent must be able to be reached via email. 

1.05 TEMPORARY SANITARY FACILITIES 

A. Provide and maintain required facilities and enclosures.  Provide at time of project mobilization. 

B. Maintain daily in clean and sanitary condition. 

1.06 BARRIERS 

A. Provide barriers to prevent unauthorized entry to construction areas, to prevent access to areas 
that could be hazardous to workers or the public, to allow for owner's use of site and to protect 
existing facilities and adjacent properties from damage from construction operations and 
demolition. 

B. Provide barricades and covered walkways required by governing authorities for public rights-of-
way . 

C. Provide protection for plants designated to remain.  Replace damaged plants. 

D. Protect non-owned vehicular traffic, stored materials, site, and structures from damage. 

1.07 WATER CONTROL 

A. Grade site to drain.  Maintain excavations free of water.  Provide, operate, and maintain 
pumping equipment. 

B. Protect site from puddling or running water.  Provide water barriers as required to protect site 
from soil erosion. 

C. Provide temporary drainage trenches, drains, sumps, pumps, or other items required to afford 
satisfactory working conditions for the execution, completion and protection of the work.  Water 
shall be diverted to or shall be pumped into existing sewerage systems or ditches and shall not 
be allowed to run onto ground surface area. 

1.08 FENCING 

A. Construction:  Commercial grade chain link fence. 

B. Provide 6 foot high fence around construction trailers, equipment and storage areas; equip with 
vehicular and pedestrian gates with locks. 

1.09 EXTERIOR ENCLOSURES 

A. Provide temporary insulated weather tight closure of exterior openings to accommodate 
acceptable working conditions and protection for Products, to allow for temporary heating and 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS  01 50 00 - 3 
 

maintenance of required ambient temperatures identified in individual specification sections, 
and to prevent entry of unauthorized persons.  Provide access doors with self-closing hardware 
and locks. 

1.10 WEATHER PROTECTION 

A. Protect work and existing or adjacent property against weather, to maintain their work, 
materials, apparatus and fixtures free form injury or damage in accordance with the General 
conditions during the entire construction period.  Work damaged by failure to provide weather 
protection all be removed and replaced with new work at the contractor's expense. 

B. Provide temporary non-staining waterproof coverings to close-off cavities and shed water to 
exterior and lap wall assemblies not less than 4 inches.  Maintain in watertight condition until 
permanent coverings are in place. 

C. Remove all snow and ice as may be required for proper protection and execution of the work 
and protect and safety of the public. 

1.11 SECURITY  

A. Provide security and facilities to protect Work,  and Owner's operations from unauthorized 
entry, vandalism, or theft. 

B. Coordinate with Owner's security program. 

1.12 VEHICULAR ACCESS AND PARKING 

A. Comply with regulations relating to use of streets and sidewalks, access to emergency facilities, 
and access for emergency vehicles. 

B. Coordinate access and haul routes with governing authorities and Owner. 

C. Provide traffic control at critical areas of haul routes to regulate traffic, to minimize interference 
with public traffic. 

D. Provide and maintain access to fire hydrants, free of obstructions. Leave fire lanes and aisles to 
fire fighting equipment unobstructed at all times.  Do not pile material in front of fire equipment, 
fire doors, or hydrants. 

E. Provide means of removing mud from vehicle wheels before entering streets. 

F. Designated existing on-site roads may be used for construction traffic. 

G. Construct and maintain temporary roads accessing public thoroughfares to serve construction 
area.  Extend and relocate as Work progress requires.  Provide detours necessary for 
unimpeded traffic flow. 

H. Provide temporary parking areas to accommodate construction personnel.  When site space is 
not adequate, provide additional off-site parking. 

1. Existing parking areas  may be used for construction parking. 

2. Parking of private vehicles of workers shall be in an area allocated by Project Coordinator 
and as agreed to by Owner. 

3. Do not obstruct egress to and from parking areas unless authorized by Owner. 

1.13 WASTE REMOVAL 

A. Provide waste removal facilities and services as required to maintain the site in clean and 
orderly condition.  Locate in area designated by Owner and Project Coordinator. 

B. Provide containers with lids.  Remove trash from site weekly, legally disposing of waste 
materials, debris and rubbish off site and off Owner's property. 

C. If materials to be recycled or re-used on the project must be stored on-site, provide suitable 
non-combustible containers; locate containers holding flammable material outside the structure 
unless otherwise approved by the authorities having jurisdiction. 

D. Open free-fall chutes are not permitted.  Terminate closed chutes into appropriate containers 
with lids. 

E. Remove waste materials, debris, and rubbish from building daily. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS  01 50 00 - 4 
 

F. Carts, trucks, etc. used to transport materials shall be loaded in a safe manner.  Materials shall 
not protrude beyond the sides of conveyance used. 

G. Materials shall not be thrown or dropped from scaffolds or other overhead areas. 

H. Gasoline or other highly flammable liquids shall not be brought inside facilities. 

1.14 PROJECT IDENTIFICATION 

A. Provide project identification sign of design and construction indicated on drawings. 

1. Design sign and structure to withstand 50 miles/hr wind velocity. 

2. Finishes, Painting:  Adequate to withstand weathering, fading, and chipping for duration of 
construction. 

B. Erect on site at location indicated. 

C. No signs are allowed without Owner permission except those required by law. 

1.15 FIELD OFFICES 

A. Office:  Weathertight, with lighting, electrical outlets, heating, cooling equipment, and equipped 
with sturdy furniture and drawing display table. 

1. Review proposed location within Project Site with Owner. 

2. Provide space for Project meetings, with table and chairs to accommodate 12 persons. 

B. Field Offices shall be maintained until final acceptance and then be removed by the responsible 
party, no later than fifteen (15) days after acceptance of building, unless the Project 
Coordinator orders or approves earlier removal. 

C. Expenses: 

1. Project Coordinator:  All expenses in connection with his Field Offices, including the 
installation costs and use of telephones, heat, air-conditioning, light, water and janitor 
service shall be paid for by the Project Coordinator. 

2. Trade Contractors:  All expenses associated with their offices including utility installation 
costs shall be included in their bid. 

3. Toll Costs:  All long distance calls to be paid for by party placing call including Architect, 
Owner's representative, and contractors. 

D. Each Trade Contractor: To keep a complete set of drawings, and specifications kept marked up 
to date with revision, Addenda, as-built drawings, and all permits and approved shop drawings 
on file. 

1.16 REMOVAL OF UTILITIES, FACILITIES, AND CONTROLS 

A. Remove temporary utilities, equipment, facilities, materials, prior to Date of Substantial 
Completion inspection. 

B. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary work. 

C. Restore existing facilities used during construction to original condition. 

D. Restore new permanent facilities used during construction to specified condition. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS  01 60 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 60 00 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. General product requirements. 

B. Transportation, handling, storage and protection. 

C. Substitution limitations. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

A. Section 01 40 00 - Quality Requirements:  Product quality monitoring. 

B. Section 01 60 10 - Substitution Procedures 

C. Section 01 60 10.01 - Substitution Request Form 

1.03 SUBMITTALS 

A. Product Data Submittals:  Submit manufacturer's standard published data.  Mark each copy to 
identify applicable products, models, options, and other data.  Supplement manufacturers' 
standard data to provide information specific to this Project. 

B. Sample Submittals:  Illustrate functional characteristics of the product, with integral parts and 
attachment devices. Coordinate sample submittals for interfacing work. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS 

2.01 EXISTING PRODUCTS 

A. Do not use materials and equipment removed from existing premises unless specifically 
required or permitted by Contract Documents. 

B. Existing materials and equipment indicated to be removed, but not to be re-used, relocated, 
reinstalled, delivered to the Owner, or otherwise indicated as to remain the property of the 
Owner, become the property of the Contractor; remove from site. 

2.02 NEW PRODUCTS 

A. Provide new products unless specifically required or permitted by Contract Documents. 

B. See Section 01 40 00 - Quality Requirements, for additional source quality control 
requirements. 

C. Use of products having any of the following characteristics is not permitted: 

1. Made using or containing CFC's or HCFC's. 

2. Containing lead, cadmium, or asbestos. 

2.03 PRODUCT OPTIONS 

A. Products Specified by Reference Standards or by Description Only:  Use any product meeting 
those standards or description. 

B. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers:  Use a product of one of the 
manufacturers named and meeting specifications, or an equal submitted and approved. 

C. Products Specified by Naming One or More Manufacturers with a Provision for Substitutions:  
Submit a request for substitution for any manufacturer not named. 

1. See also Section 01 60 10 - Substitution Procedures. 

PART 3  EXECUTION 

3.01 SUBSTITUTION LIMITATIONS 

A. See Section 01 60 10 - Substitution Procedures for procedures for submitting equal products 
for consideration. 

3.02 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING 

A. Package products for shipment in manner to prevent damage. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS  01 60 00 - 2 
 

B. If special precautions are required, attach instructions prominently and legibly on outside of 
packaging. 

C. Coordinate schedule of product delivery to designated prepared areas in order to minimize site 
storage time and potential damage to stored materials. 

D. Transport and handle products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 

E. Transport materials in covered trucks to prevent contamination of product and littering of 
surrounding areas. 

F. Promptly inspect shipments to ensure that products comply with requirements, quantities are 
correct, and products are undamaged. 

3.03 STORAGE AND PROTECTION 

A. Provide protection of stored materials and products against theft, casualty, or deterioration. 

B. Store and protect products in accordance with manufacturers' instructions. 

C. Store with seals and labels intact and legible. 

D. Provide off-site storage and protection when site does not permit on-site storage or protection. 

E. Comply with manufacturer's warranty conditions, if any. 

F. Do not store products directly on the ground. 

G. Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering.  Provide ventilation to 
prevent condensation and degradation of products. 

H. Store loose granular materials on solid flat surfaces in a well-drained area.  Prevent mixing with 
foreign matter. 

I. Prevent contact with material that may cause corrosion, discoloration, or staining. 

J. Provide equipment and personnel to store products by methods to prevent soiling, 
disfigurement, or damage. 

K. Arrange storage of products to permit access for inspection. Periodically inspect to verify 
products are undamaged and are maintained in acceptable condition. 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES  01 60 10 - 1 
 

SECTION 01 60 10 

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Procedural requirements for proposed substitutions (equals), prior to bid and after award. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

A. Section 00 21 13 - Instructions to Bidders:  Restrictions on timing of substitution requests. 

B. Section 01 30 00 - Administrative Requirements:  Submittal procedures, coordination. 

C. Section 01 60 00 - Product Requirements:  Fundamental product requirements, product 
options, delivery, storage, and handling. 

D. Section 01 60 10.01 - Substitution Request Form 

1.03 DEFINITIONS 

A. Substitutions:  Changes from Contract Documents requirements proposed by Contractor to 
materials, products, assemblies, and equipment. 

1. Substitutions for Cause:  Proposed due to changed Project circumstances beyond 
Contractor's control. 

a. Unavailability. 

b. Regulatory changes. 

2. Substitutions for Convenience:  Proposed due to possibility of offering substantial 
advantage to the Project. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION 

3.01 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

A. A Substitution Request for products, assemblies, materials, and equipment constitutes a 
representation that the submitter: 

1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds the quality 
level of the specified product, equipment, assembly, or system. 

2. Agrees to provide the same warranty for the substitution as for the specified product. 

3. Agrees to provide same or equivalent maintenance service and source of replacement 
parts, as applicable. 

4. Agrees to coordinate installation and make changes to other work that may be required for 
the work to be complete, with no additional cost to Owner. 

5. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension that may subsequently become 
apparent. 

B. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of proposed substitution 
with Contract Documents.  Burden of proof is on proposer. 

1. Note explicitly any non-compliant characteristics. 

C. Content:  Include information necessary for tracking the status of each Substitution Request, 
and information necessary to provide an actionable response. 

1. Forms included in the Project Manual are adequate for this purpose, and must be used. 

D. Limit each request to a single proposed substitution item. 

1. Submit an electronic document, combining the request form with supporting data into 
single document. 

3.02 SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES DURING PROCUREMENT 

A. Submittal Time Restrictions: 

1. Instructions to Bidders specifies time restrictions and the documents required for 
submitting substitution requests during the bidding period. 

B. Submittal Form (before award of contract): 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES  01 60 10 - 2 
 

1. Submit substitution requests by completing the form provided in Section 01 60 10.01.  See 
this form for additional information and instructions.  Use only this form; other forms of 
submission are unacceptable. 

2. Substitution requests shall not be considered approved unless included by addendum. 

3.03 SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES DURING DEMOLITION 

A. Submittal Form (after award of contract): 

1. Submit substitution requests by completing the form provided in Section 01 60 10.01.  See 
this section for additional information and instructions.  Use only this form; other forms of 
submission are unacceptable. 

B. Submit request for Substitution for Cause within 14 days of discovery of need for substitution, 
but not later than 14 days prior to time required for review and approval by Architect, in order to 
stay on approved project schedule. 

C. Submit request for Substitution for Convenience immediately upon discovery of its potential 
advantage to the project, but not later than 14 days prior to time required for review and 
approval by Architect, in order to stay on approved project schedule. 

1. Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the proposed substitution is of equal to or 
superior to the basis of design in performance, appearance, quality and function prior to 
Architect’s review. 

2. In addition to meeting general documentation requirements, document how the requested 
substitution benefits the Owner through cost savings, time savings, greater energy 
conservation, or in other specific ways. 

3. Document means of coordinating of substitution item with other portions of the work, 
including work by affected subcontractors. 

4. Bear the costs engendered by proposed substitution of: 

a. Other construction by Owner. 

b. Other unanticipated project considerations. 

D. Substitutions will not be considered under one or more of the following circumstances: 

1. When they are indicated or implied on shop drawing or product data submittals, without 
having received prior approval. 

2. Without a separate written request. 

3. When acceptance will require revisions to Contract Documents. 

3.04 RESOLUTION 

A. Architect may request additional information and documentation prior to rendering a decision.  
Provide this data in an expeditious manner. 

B. Architect will notify Contractor in writing of decision to accept or reject request. 

1. Architect's decision following review of proposed substitution will be noted on the 
submitted form. 

3.05 ACCEPTANCE 

A. Accepted substitutions change the work of the Project.  They will be documented and 
incorporated into work of the project by Change Order, Construction Change Directive, 
Architectural Supplementary Instructions, or similar instruments provided for in the Conditions 
of the Contract. 

1. An approved and returned Substitution Request Form alone does not qualify. 

3.06 CLOSEOUT ACTIVITIES 

A. See Section 01 78 00 - Closeout Submittals, for closeout submittals. 

B. Include completed Substitution Request Forms as part of the Project record.  Include both 
approved and rejected Requests. 

END OF SECTION 

 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

DEMOLITION  02 41 00 - 1 
 

SECTION 02 41 00 

DEMOLITION 

PART 1  GENERAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Demolition of built site elements. 

B. Demolition of building elements 

C. Abandonment and removal of existing utilities, utility structures and below-grade construction. 

1.02 RELATED REQUIREMENTS 

B. Section 01 10 00 - Summary:  Limitations on Contractor's use of site and premises. 

E. Section 01 50 00 - Temporary Facilities and Controls:  Site fences, security, protective barriers, 
and waste removal. 

F. Section 01 60 00 - Product Requirements:  Handling and storage of items removed for salvage 
and relocation. 

G. Section 01 70 00 - Execution and Closeout Requirements:  Project conditions; protection of 
bench marks, survey control points, and existing construction to remain; reinstallation of 
removed products; temporary bracing and shoring. 

1.03 DEFINITIONS 

A. Demolition:  Dismantle, raze, destroy or wreck any building or structure or any part thereof. 

B. Remove:  Detach or dismantle items from existing construction and dispose of them off site, 
unless items are indicated to be salvaged or reinstalled. 

C. Remove and Salvage:  Detach or dismantle items from existing construction in a manner to 
prevent damage.  Clean, package, label and deliver salvaged items to Owner in ready-for-
reuse condition. 

E. Existing to Remain:  Designation for existing items that are not to be removed and that are not 
otherwise indicated to be salvaged or reinstalled. 

1.04 REFERENCE STANDARDS 

A. 29 CFR 1926 - U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Standards. 

B. NFPA 241 - Standard for Safeguarding Construction, Alteration, and Demolition Operations. 

1.05 ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Pre-demolition Meeting:  Conduct a pre-demolition meeting one week prior to the start of the 
work of this section; require attendance by all affected installers. 

1.06 SUBMITTALS 

A. See Section 01 30 00 - Administrative Requirements for submittal procedures. 

B. Site Plan:  Indicate: 

1. Vegetation to be protected. 

2. Areas for temporary construction and field offices. 

3. Areas for temporary and permanent placement of removed materials. 

C. Demolition Plan:  Submit demolition plan as required by OSHA and local AHJs. 

1. Indicate extent of demolition, removal sequencing, bracing and shoring, and location and 
construction of barricades and fences. 

2. Summary of safety procedures. 

3. Schedule of building demolition activities with starting and ending dates for each activity. 

4. Include measures for environmental protection, for dust control, and for noise control. 

5. Detail special measures proposed to protect adjacent buildings or spaces to remain 
including means of egress. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

DEMOLITION  02 41 00 - 2 
 

D. Project Record Documents:  Accurately record actual locations of capped and active utilities 
and subsurface construction. 

1.07 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Regulatory Requirements: Comply with governing EPA notification regulations before beginning 
demolition. Comply with hauling and disposal regulations of authorities having jurisdiction. 

B. Standards: Comply with ASSE A10.6 and NFPA 241. 

1.08 FIELD CONDITIONS 

A. Buildings immediately adjacent to demolition area will be occupied. Conduct building demolition 
so operations of occupied buildings will not be disrupted. 

1. Provide not less than 72 hours notice of activities that will affect operations of adjacent 
occupied buildings. 

2. Maintain access to existing walkways, exits, and other facilities used by occupants of 
adjacent buildings. 

a. Do not close or obstruct walkways, exits, or other facilities used by occupants of 
adjacent buildings without written permission from authorities having jurisdiction. 

B. Conditions existing at time of inspection for bidding purpose will be maintained by Owner as far 
as practical. 

C. Hazardous Materials: It is not expected that hazardous materials will be encountered in the 
Work. 

1. Hazardous materials will be removed by Owner before start of the Work. 

2. If materials suspected of containing hazardous materials are encountered, do not disturb; 
immediately notify Architect and Owner. Hazardous materials will be removed by Owner 
under a separate contract. 

D. On-site storage or sale of removed items or materials is not permitted. 

E. Arrange demolition schedule so as not to interfere with Owner's on-site operations or 
operations of adjacent occupied buildings. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS – NOT USED 

PART 3  EXECUTION 

3.01 DEMOLITION 

A. Remove portions of existing building as indicated in demolition plans. 

B. Remove paving and curbs required to accomplish new work. 

C. Fill excavations, open pits, and holes in ground areas generated as result of removals, using 
specified fill; compact fill 

3.02 MATERIALS OWNERSHIP 

A. Unless otherwise indicated, demolition waste becomes property of Contractor. 

B. Historic items, relics, antiques, and similar objects including, but not limited to, cornerstones 
and their contents, commemorative plaques and tablets, and other items of interest or value to 
Owner that may be uncovered during demolition remain the property of Owner. 

1. Carefully salvage in a manner to prevent damage and promptly return to Owner. 

3.03 GENERAL PROCEDURES AND PROJECT CONDITIONS 

A. Comply with requirements in Section 01 70 00. 

B. Comply with applicable codes and regulations for demolition operations and safety of adjacent 
structures and the public. 

1. Obtain required permits. 

2. Comply with applicable requirements of NFPA 241. 

3. Use of explosives is not permitted. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

DEMOLITION  02 41 00 - 3 
 

4. Take precautions to prevent catastrophic or uncontrolled collapse of structures to be 
removed; do not allow worker or public access within range of potential collapse of 
unstable structures. 

5. Provide, erect, and maintain temporary barriers and security devices. 

6. Use physical barriers to prevent access to areas that could be hazardous to workers or 
the public. 

a. Remove temporary barriers and protections where hazards no longer exist. 

b. Where open excavations or other hazardous conditions remain, leave temporary 
barriers and protections in place. 

7. Conduct operations to minimize effects on and interference with adjacent structures and 
occupants. 

8. Do not close or obstruct roadways or sidewalks without permits from authority having 
jurisdiction. 

9. Conduct operations to minimize obstruction of public and private entrances and exits. Do 
not obstruct required exits at any time. Protect persons using entrances and exits from 
removal operations. 

10. Obtain written permission from owners of adjacent properties when demolition equipment 
will traverse, infringe upon, or limit access to their property. 

C. Do not begin removal until receipt of notification to proceed from Owner. 

D. Do not begin removal until built elements to be salvaged or relocated have been removed. 

E. Do not begin removal until vegetation to be relocated has been removed and vegetation to 
remain has been protected from damage. 

1. Erect a plainly visible fence around drip line of individual trees or around perimeter drip 
line of groups of trees to remain. 

F. Survey existing conditions of building to determine whether removing any element might result 
in structural deficiency or unplanned collapse of any portion of structure or adjacent structures 
during building demolition operations.  Notify Architect or Engineer of any concerns. 

G. Protect existing structures and other elements to remain in place and not removed. 

1. Provide bracing and shoring. 

2. Prevent movement or settlement of adjacent structures. 

3. Stop work immediately if adjacent structures appear to be in danger. 

H. Minimize production of dust due to demolition operations. Do not use water if that will result in 
ice, flooding, sedimentation of public waterways or storm sewers, or other pollution. 

I. Hazardous Materials: 

1. If hazardous materials are discovered during removal operations, stop work and notify 
Architect and Owner; hazardous materials include regulated asbestos containing 
materials, lead, PCBs, and mercury. 

J. Perform demolition in a manner that maximizes salvage and recycling of materials. 

1. Dismantle existing construction and separate materials. 

2. Set aside reusable, recyclable, and salvageable materials; store and deliver to collection 
point or point of reuse. 

K. Partial Removal of Paving and Curbs:  Neatly saw cut at right angle to surface. 

3.04 EXISTING UTILITIES 

A. Coordinate work with utility companies. Notify utilities before starting work, comply with their 
requirements, and obtain required permits. 

B. Protect existing utilities to remain from damage. 

C. Do not disrupt public utilities without permit from authority having jurisdiction. 

D. Contractor to coordinate utility shut-downs or disruptions with the Owner through the Project 
Coordinator.  Notices shall be as identified in Division 01 sections and as agreed to at Pre-
Demolition meeting. 



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 
 

DEMOLITION  02 41 00 - 4 
 

F. Do not close, shut off, or disrupt existing utility branches or take-offs that are in use without at 
least 7 days prior notification to Owner. 

G. Verify that utilities have been disconnected and capped before starting demolition operations. 

H. Locate and mark utilities to remain; mark using highly visible tags or flags, with identification of 
utility type; protect from damage due to subsequent construction, using substantial barricades if 
necessary. 

I. Unused underground piping may be abandoned in place, provided it is completely drained and 
capped. 

J. Remove exposed piping, valves, meters, equipment, supports, and foundations of 
disconnected and abandoned utilities. 

K. Prepare building demolition areas by disconnecting and capping utilities outside the demolition 
zone. Identify and mark, in same manner as other utilities to remain, utilities to be reconnected. 

3.05 DEMOLITION 

A. Existing construction and utilities indicated on drawings are based on casual field observation 
and existing record documents only. 

1. Verify construction and utility arrangements are as indicated. 

2. Report discrepancies to Architect before disturbing existing installation. 

3. Beginning of demolition work constitutes acceptance of existing conditions that would be 
apparent upon examination prior to starting demolition. 

B. Structural Demolition: 

1. Do not use cutting torches until work area is cleared of flammable materials. Maintain 
portable fire-suppression devices during flame-cutting operations. 

2. Maintain fire watch during and for at least 24 hours after flame-cutting operations. 

3. Maintain adequate ventilation when using cutting torches. 

4. Proceed with demolition of structural framing members systematically, from higher to 
lower level.  Complete building demolition operations above each floor or tier before 
disturbing supporting members on the next lower level. 

5. Demolish or Abandon foundation walls and other below-grade construction as indicated. 

a. Remove below-grade construction, including basements, foundation walls, and 
footings, to depths indicated. 

6. Completely fill below-grade areas and voids resulting from building demolition operations 
with satisfactory soil materials 

7. Uniformly rough grade area of demolished construction to a smooth surface, free from 
irregular surface changes. Provide a smooth transition between adjacent existing grades 
and new grades. 

3.06 DEBRIS AND WASTE REMOVAL 

A. Remove debris, junk, and trash from site. 

1. Do not allow demolished materials to accumulate on-site. 

2. Locate building demolition equipment and remove debris and materials so as not to 
impose excessive loads on supporting walls, floors, or framing. 

3. Remove and transport debris in a manner that will prevent spillage on adjacent surfaces 
and areas. 

4. Remove debris from elevated portions of the building by chute, hoist, or other device that 
will convey debris to grade level in a controlled descent. 

6. Dumpster to be located as agreed upon at Pre-Bid meeting or by Owner. 

B. Remove materials not to be reused on site; do not burn or bury. 

C. Leave site in clean condition, ready for subsequent work. 

D. Clean up spillage and wind-blown debris from public and private lands. 

END OF SECTION 

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11/13/2025 11/18/2025

Kenny Schmitz

✔

✔

✔

LEC Demolition- Public Hearing Date & Notice

Pursuant to Iowa Code Chapter 26 Building Services hereby requests to set the Public Hearing Date, Time, & 
Place

  
9/02/2025- Board Approves CMBA Architectural Contract 
1/21/2025- Board Approves Olsson Engineering Survey, Utilities, & Planning Agreement

Building Services recommends setting a public hearing date of December 2nd, 2025 4:40 pm

A. Motion to Approve Hearing Date of December 2nd, 2025 4:40 pm 
B. Motion to approve "Public Notice of Hearing"



Law Enforcement Center Demo  CMBA Project #24230 

Woodbury County 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 
 

 00 11 13 - 1 
 

 

SECTION 00 11 13 

NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 

 

  

 A hearing will be conducted on the proposed plans and specifications, the proposed form of contract and 
estimated cost for the Law Enforcement Demo for the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, (the 
“Owner”) of Sioux City, Iowa at a meeting of the Board, to be held in the Woodbury County Courthouse 
Board of Supervisors Room, 620 Douglas St., Sioux City, Iowa 51101 at 4:40 P.M., on the 2nd of 
December 2025, at which time and place any person may appear and file any opinion and express their 
view to the proposed plans, specifications and form of contract and estimated costs for the Project, both 
orally and in writing. 

 Sealed bids will be accepted for the Law Enforcement Demo, in Sioux City, Iowa on behalf of the Owner 
at the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., Sioux City, Iowa 51101, in the Board of 
Supervisors Office at 3:00 P.M., on the 9th of December 2025. Bids received after this time will not be 
accepted.  All bids shall be made on official bid forms furnished by the Architect and must be enclosed in 
a separate sealed envelopes and plainly identified and addressed to the Board.  If a bid is to be mailed, 
the bid envelope shall be sealed in a regular mailing envelope.  FAX and E-mail Bids will not be accepted.  
The bidder shall bear sole responsibility for ensuring any bid is received at the correct bid location and by 
the correct time.  The Owner shall have no responsibility regarding the location or timeliness of the receipt 
of any bid(s).  Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud following the closing of the above bid 
submission deadline. 

 Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, certified check, cashier's check or certified share draft in a 
separate sealed envelope, clearly marked “Bid Bond” or Bid Security”, in an amount equal to five percent 
(5%) of the total amount of the bid.  The certified or cashier's check shall be drawn on a bank in Iowa or a 
bank chartered under the laws of the United States of America or the certified share draft shall be drawn 
on a credit union in Iowa or chartered under the laws of the United States and payable to the Owner.  
Said check or share draft may be cashed, or the bid bond forfeited as liquidated damages in the event the 
successful bidder fails or refuses to enter into a contract within ten (10) days of issuance of a Notice of 
Award and post bond satisfactory to the Owner, insuring the faithful fulfillment of the contract and 
maintenance of said improvements as required by law.  The bid bond should be executed by a 
corporation authorized to contract as a surety in the State of Iowa and must not contain any conditions 
either in the body or as an endorsement thereon. Bids received will be acted upon at such later time and 
place as may then be established.  The successful bidder will be notified after the Board of Supervisors 
awards the contract. 

 Contract documents may be examined at the office of the Architect, Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, 
PC, d/b/a CMBA Architects, 302 Jones St., Suite 200, Sioux City, Iowa 51101, or obtained from the 
Architect for a $100 refundable deposit.  Contract documents may also be examined at the following 
Building Exchanges: 

1. Sioux City Construction League, 3900 Stadium Drive, Sioux City, IA 51106. 

2. Plains Builder's Exchange, 220 N. Kiwanis Ave., Sioux Falls, SD 57104. 

3. Sioux Falls Builder's Exchange, 1418 C Ave., Sioux Falls, SD 57104. 

4. North Iowa Builder's Exchange, 15 W. State Street, Mason City, IA 50401. 

5. Greater Fort Dodge Growth Alliance, 24 N. 9th Street, Fort Dodge, IA 50501. 

6. Omaha Builder's Exchange, 4159 S. 94th Street, Omaha, NE 68127. 

7. Master Builders of Iowa, 221 Park Street, Des Moines, Iowa 50309. 

 The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all proposals, re-advertise for new bids and to waive 
informalities that may be in the best interest of the Owner. 



NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING 
 

 00 11 13 - 2 
 

 

 The successful bidder will be notified on or after December 10th, 2025, after the proposals have been 
reviewed by the Architect and a recommendation as to the lowest responsible bidder has been made to 
Owner and accepted by the Owner. 

 Plans and specifications governing the construction of said proposed improvements have been prepared 
by Cannon Moss Brygger & Associates, PC, d/b/a CMBA Architects 302 Jones St., Suite 200, Sioux City, 
Iowa 51101, which plans and specifications referring to and defining said proposed improvements are 
hereby made a part of this notice and the proposed contract shall be executed to comply therein. 

 PRE-BID CONFERENCE will be held at the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas St., Sioux 
City, Iowa 51101, in the Board of Supervisors Conference Room at 2:00 P.M., on the 2nd of 
December 2025.  Remote attendance is possible through Microsoft Teams, an invitation email may 
be requested from Tanner Koeppe koeppe.t@cmbaarchitects.com.  An electronic copy of the 
original building plans are also available and can be requested in the same manner.  All interested 
contractors, sub-contractors and material suppliers are encouraged to attend.  The Owner, Architect and 
Consulting Engineers will be present to describe the Project and answer questions.  Attendance is not 
mandatory, but is recommended. 

 

 

 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

11-14-25 11-18-25

Ryan Ericson - Finance Director

✔

✔

Increase County Contribution to Self-Insurance Health Plan 

In order to maintain the funding status of the self-health insurance plan, more contributions are needed by the 
County.

In FY25, $725,000 was needed to be transfered from the General Supplement fund to the Self-Health 
Insurance fund to bring it to the minimum level required by Iowa Code.  Current estimated shortfall is in the 
range of $460,000 to over $1 million.  

This will increase the per pay period amount contributed by nearly $50,000 or $100,000 per month.

Increase the County contribution to the Self-Health insurance fund by 20% effective 12/1/25.

Change the County contribution to the Self-Health insurance fund to the rates listed, an 20% effective 
increase. 



Woodbury County
County Health Fund Contribution Rates
Effective July 1, 2025 - New Rate Effective Dec 1, 2025

PPO Health Deputies

Per Pay Current 20% New New Rate
Plan Period Monthly Increase Monthly Per Pay

Family No Wellness 814.70      1,629.40   325.88      1,955.28   977.64      
Family Reduced by 10 824.70      1,649.40   329.88      1,979.28   987.64      
Family Reduced by 15 829.70      1,659.40   331.88      1,991.28   992.64      

Single No Wellness 345.68      691.36       138.27      829.63       414.82      
Singe Reduced by 10 355.68      711.36       142.27      853.63       424.82      

PPO Health Others

Per Pay Current 20% New New Rate
Plan Period Monthly Increase Monthly Per Pay

Family No Wellness 794.49      1,588.98   317.80      1,906.78   953.39      
Family Reduced by 10 804.49      1,608.98   321.80      1,930.78   963.39      
Family Reduced by 15 809.49      1,618.98   323.80      1,942.78   968.39      

Library 335.91      671.82       134.36      806.18       403.09      
Single No Wellness 335.91      671.82       134.36      806.18       403.09      

Singe Reduced by 10 345.91      691.82       138.36      830.18       415.09      

HMO Health Deputies

Per Pay Current 20% New New Rate
Plan Period Monthly Increase Monthly Per Pay

Family No Wellness 754.64      1,509.28   301.86      1,811.14   905.57      
Family Reduced by 10 764.64      1,529.28   305.86      1,835.14   915.57      
Family Reduced by 15 769.64      1,539.28   307.86      1,847.14   920.57      

Single No Wellness 322.77      645.54       129.11      774.65       387.33      
Singe Reduced by 10 332.77      665.54       133.11      798.65       397.33      

HMO - Others

Per Pay Current 20% New New Rate
Plan Period Monthly Increase Monthly Per Pay

Family No Wellness 736.72      1,473.44   294.69      1,768.13   884.07      
Family Reduced by 10 746.72      1,493.44   298.69      1,792.13   894.07      
Family Reduced by 15 751.72      1,503.44   300.69      1,804.13   899.07      

Single No Wellness 313.98      627.96       125.59      753.55       376.78      
Singe Reduced by 10 323.98      647.96       129.59      777.55       386.78      



Woodbury County
Self Health Fund Activity
FY 2025

Month County Employee Total Claims Stop Loss Direct Pay Pharm Rebate Fixed Total Inc/(Dec)
July 506,553           47,358              553,911       880,505           (368,317)            (16,638)              -                      94,466              590,016           (36,105)        
Aug 485,793           47,285              533,078       683,835           (92,880)              (13,079)              -                      93,414              671,290           (138,212)     
Sep 483,884           46,927              530,811       562,252           (56,871)              (16,186)              (242,583)            92,908              339,520           191,291       
Oct 484,657           47,162              531,819       769,994           (276,003)            (14,762)              -                      91,476              570,705           (38,886)        
Nov 486,497           47,387              533,884       786,359           (131,619)            (14,762)              -                      96,505              736,483           (202,599)     
Dec 484,898           47,206              532,104       837,361           (96,451)              (17,254)              (246,814)            94,105              570,947           (38,843)        
Jan 491,238           47,435              538,673       627,364           -                      (14,373)              -                      119,602           732,593           (193,920)     
Feb 478,506           46,155              524,661       686,266           -                      (16,973)              -                      121,112           790,405           (265,744)     
Mar 472,856           45,633              518,489       640,783           (33,180)              (18,682)              -                      121,862           710,783           (192,294)     
Apr 474,048           45,740              519,788       823,706           (115,569)            (17,960)              (302,854)            115,777           503,100           16,688         
May 473,095           45,627              518,722       767,053           (45,777)              (18,686)              -                      114,414           817,004           (298,282)     
Jun 480,378           63,793              544,171       653,021           (57,288)              (16,969)              (152,658)            117,840           543,946           225              
Additional 725,000           -                    725,000       -                    -                      -                      -                      -                    -                    725,000       
Total 6,527,403        577,708           7,105,111   8,718,499        (1,273,955)        (196,324)            (944,909)            1,273,481        7,576,792        (471,681)     

91.9% 8.1%

Monthly Avg 483,534           48,142              531,676       726,542           (106,163)            (16,360)              (78,742)              106,123           631,399           (99,723)        

Total Claims & Fixed 9,991,980        

Contributions Wellmark Monthly Statement



Woodbury County
Self Health Fund Activity Estimate - Using Current Year Averages
FY 2026

Month County Employee Total Claims Stop Loss Direct Pay Pharm Rebate Fixed Total Inc/(Dec)
July 495,496       61,070              556,566      544,685            (101,680)            (19,629)              117,368            540,744            15,823         
Aug 499,102       61,398              560,500      708,468            (122,465)            (23,029)              118,248            681,222            (120,722)      
Sep 495,308       60,970              556,278      684,566            (84,472)              (19,768)              (175,905)            117,368            521,788            34,490         
Oct 490,495       60,363              550,858      666,401            (49,563)              (19,727)              115,801            712,913            (162,055)      
Nov 495,000      61,000             556,000     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             117,000           657,000            (101,000)      
Dec 495,000      61,000             556,000     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             (175,000)           117,000           482,000            74,000         
Jan 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             140,000           680,000            (91,825)        
Feb 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             140,000           680,000            (91,825)        
Mar 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             (175,000)           140,000           505,000            83,175         
Apr 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             140,000           680,000            (91,825)        
May 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             140,000           680,000            (91,825)        
Jun 527,175      61,000             588,175     651,000           (90,000)             (21,000)             (175,000)           140,000           505,000            83,175         
Total 6,133,451    731,802            6,865,253  7,812,119        (1,078,181)         (250,153)            (700,905)            1,542,786        7,325,666        (460,414)      

89.3% 10.7%

Actual Monthly Avg 495,100       60,950              556,051      651,030            (89,545)              (20,538)              (175,905)            117,196            614,167            (58,116)        

Estimated Monthly Avg 511,121       60,983              572,104      651,010            (89,848)              (20,846)              (175,226)            128,565            610,472            (38,368)        

Contributions for County and Employee are actual numbers for July - Oct. Total Claims & Fixed 9,354,905        
Contributions for Employee for Nov - Jun is a monthly average.
Contributions for County for Nov & Dec is a monthly average.  For the months of Jan - Jun were increased by 6.5% to cover increase in fixed costs.

Wellmark data is actual for Jul - Oct.  Monthly averages were used for Nov - Jun.
Fixed costs are increasing by 19.5% in Jan 2026

Contributions Wellmark Monthly Statement



Woodbury County
Self Health Fund Activity Estimate - Using Prior Year Actuals
FY 2026

Month County Employee Total Claims Stop Loss Direct Pay Pharm Rebate Fixed Total Inc/(Dec)
July 495,496       61,070              556,566      544,685            (101,680)            (19,629)              117,368            540,744            15,823         
Aug 499,102       61,398              560,500      708,468            (122,465)            (23,029)              118,248            681,222            (120,722)      
Sep 495,308       60,970              556,278      684,566            (84,472)              (19,768)              (175,905)            117,368            521,788            34,490         
Oct 490,495       60,363              550,858      666,401            (49,563)              (19,727)              -                      115,801            712,913            (162,055)      
Nov 495,000      61,000             556,000     786,359           (131,619)           (14,762)             -                     117,000           756,978           (200,978)      
Dec 495,000      61,000             556,000     837,361           (96,451)             (17,254)             (246,814)           117,000           593,842           (37,842)        
Jan 527,175      61,000             588,175     627,364           -                     (14,373)             -                     140,000           752,991           (164,816)      
Feb 527,175      61,000             588,175     686,266           -                     (16,973)             -                     140,000           809,293           (221,118)      
Mar 527,175      61,000             588,175     640,783           (33,180)             (18,682)             -                     140,000           728,921           (140,746)      
Apr 527,175      61,000             588,175     823,706           (115,569)           (17,960)             (302,854)           140,000           527,323           60,852         
May 527,175      61,000             588,175     767,053           (45,777)             (18,686)             -                     140,000           842,590           (254,415)      
Jun 527,175      61,000             588,175     653,021           (57,288)             (16,969)             (152,658)           140,000           566,106           22,069         
Total 6,133,451    731,802            6,865,253  8,426,032        (838,064)            (217,812)            (878,231)            1,542,786        8,034,710        (1,169,458)  

Monthly Avg 511,121       60,983              572,104      702,169            (69,839)              (18,151)              (87,823)              128,565            669,559            (97,455)        

Contributions for County and Employee are actual numbers for July - Oct. Total Claims & Fixed 9,968,818        
Contributions for Employee for Nov - Jun is a monthly average.
Contributions for County for Nov & Dec is a monthly average.  For the months of Jan - Jun were increased by 6.5% to cover increase in fixed costs.

Wellmark data is actual for Jul - Oct.  Nov - Jun numbers used are from FY25 monthly statements for everything but fixed costs.
Fixed costs are increasing by 19.5% in Jan 2026

Contributions Wellmark Monthly Statement



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

11/14/2025 11/18/2025

Supervisor Bittinger

ISAC has filed an Amicus brief to the U.S. Supreme Court on behalf of Shelby and Story Counties regarding the rights of counties 
to exert local control regarding pipeline safety ordiances. Woodbury County is a part of a multi-county litgation working to prevent 
the abuse of eminent domain and nullification of the Iowa constitutions "Home Rule" law by the State of Iowa/IUC. 

Woodbury County should support ISAC with a financial contribution.  

See background information attached. 

Finanical Support for ISAC Amicus Brief

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

$1,000 from Gaming Revenue. 

Motion to approve $1,000 from Gaming Revenue to support the ISAC Amicus Brief. 

Motion to approve $1,000 from Gaming Revenue to support the ISAC Amicus Brief. 













WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

11/14/2025 11/18/2025

Dan Bittinger, Chairman 

A new plan design will enable Woodbury County's health fund to maintain financial stability. 

The new HMO and PPO plans are attached. Changes include deductible, out of pocket maximums, coinsurance and co pays. One 
of the biggest changes is the 4 tiers billing plan. Currently both the HMO and PPO have two tiers, employee single and employee 
family. This is changing to a four tier system. The rates will be based on employee, employee and spouse, employee and children 
and employee and family. The deputies plan will remain the same as noted in the last column. Please see pricing changes below: 
 
PPO Current 
EE Single     $95.94 
EE Family    $219.66 
 
PPO New 
EE single           $95.00 
EE and spouse  $195.00 
EE and children $185.00 
EE and family    $ 285.00 
 
HMO Current 
EE Single     $74.56 
EE Family    $172.20 
 
HMO New 
EE single           $75.00 
EE and spouse  $170.00 
EE and children $165.00 
EE and family    $180.00 
 

Approval of the new Woodbury County health insurance plan design

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

✔

The changes will increase the fund balance and help Woodbury County remain in self-funded status for their health plan.  

Pass the motion 

Motion to pass the new health insurance plan designs effective 01/01/2026. 



Woodbury County

Medical | Self-Funded Renewal | Effective 1/1/2026

Sheriff Deputies Only

Carrier Wellmark Wellmark Wellmark

PPO $1,000 HMO $500 HMO $250

$500 / $1,000 $500 / $1,000 $250 / $500

$1,500 / $3,000 $1,500 / $3,000 $750 / $1,250

20% 20% 20%

Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100%

$25 Copay $25 Copay $20 Copay

$50 Copay $50 Copay $20 Copay

$50 Copay $50 Copay $20 Copay

20% after deductible 20% after deductible 20% after deductible

20% after deductible 20% after deductible 20% after deductible

20% after deductible 20% after deductible 20% after deductible

$25 Copay $25 Copay $20 Copay

$25 Copay $25 Copay $20 Copay

20% after deductible 20% after deductible 20% after deductible

20% after deductible 20% after deductible 20% after deductible

Blue Rx Complete Blue Rx Value Plus Blue Rx Value Plus

NA NA NA

Aggregates with Medical Aggregates with Medical Aggregates with Medical

30 Days 30 Days 30 Days

Greater of $6 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $25 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $50 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $6 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $25 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $50 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $6 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $25 or 20% Coinsurance

Greater of $50 or 20% Coinsurance

Same as listed above Same as listed above Same as listed above

90 Days 90 Days 90 Days

3 Copayments or Coinsurance 3 Copayments or Coinsurance 3 Copayments or Coinsurance

$500 / $1,000 N/A N/A

$1,500 / $3,000 N/A N/A

30% N/A N/A

COST ANALYSIS

Employee Monthly Rates PPO $1,000 HMO $500 HMO $250

Employee (EE) Only $95.00 $75.00 $56.98

EE + Spouse $195.00 $170.00 NA

EE + Child(ren) $185.00 $165.00 NA

EE + Family $285.00 $180.00 $136.36

1/12026 Plan Options

Plan Name

PLAN DESIGN*

In-Network Benefits

Calendar Year (CY) Deductible (Individual / Family)

Phys/Occ/Speech Therapy (visit limits may apply)

CY Out-of-Pocket Max (Individual / Family)

Coinsurance (member pays after deductible)

Preventive Care

Primary Care Visit

Specialist Visit

Urgent Care

Emergency Room 

Inpatient Hospital

Outpatient Surgery 

Chiropractic (visit limits may apply)

Out-of-Network Benefits

Diagnostic Test (X-ray, blood work)

Imaging (CT/PET scan, MRI) 

Prescription Drug Benefit

Deductible (Individual / Family)

Out-of-Pocket Maximum (Individual / Family)

Retail 

Tier I / Tier II / Tier III

Specialty

Mail Order 

Tier I / Tier II / Tier III

CY Deductible (Individual / Family)

CY Out-of-Pocket Max (Individual / Family)

Coinsurance (member pays after deductible)


	Insert from: "Agenda111825LECDemoacontractplansspecs.pdf"
	Insert from: "LEC Demo Specifications.pdf"
	00 00 00 Cover
	00 01 10 RIB-Table of Contents
	00 11 13 CMBA-NOTICE OF HEARING AND LETTING
	00 21 12 - A701-2018 Instructions to Bidders
	ARTICLE 1   DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE 2   BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS
	ARTICLE 3   BIDDING DOCUMENTS
	ARTICLE 4   BIDDING PROCEDURES
	ARTICLE 5   CONSIDERATION OF BIDS
	ARTICLE 6   POST-BID INFORMATION
	ARTICLE 7   PERFORMANCE BOND AND PAYMENT BOND
	ARTICLE 8   ENUMERATION OF THE PROPOSED CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

	00 21 13 RIB-Instructions to Bidders
	00 41 00 RIB-Bid Form
	00 41 00a Bidder Status Form
	00 43 36 RIB-Proposed Subcontractors Form
	00 50 00 RIB-Contracting Forms and Supplements
	00 50 01 A101- With Exhibit A
	00 72 00 A201 General Conditions
	00 73 00 CMBA-SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
	01 10 00 RIB-Summary
	01 20 00 RIB-Price and Payment Procedures
	01 30 00 RIB-Administrative Requirements
	01 40 00 RIB-Quality Requirements
	01 50 00 RIB-Temporary Facilities and Controls
	01 60 00 RIB-Product Requirements
	01 60 10 RIB-Substitution Procedures
	02 41 00 RIB-Demolition



